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Defendant Profile: Former President Joseph R. Biden 
Jr.

Former President of the United States | Architect of the Rosemont Network | “The Big 
Guy” Behind Election Interference, Financial Crimes, and Political Violence

✔ Role:

Former President Joseph R. Biden Jr. served as the 46th President of the United States; he was 
the architect and political anchor of the Rosemont Network—a criminal alliance operating 
across financial, intelligence, academic, and governmental spheres. He is the central figure in 
the 2020 election interference, the 2024 attempted assassination of Donald J. Trump, and 
the provision of material support to foreign terrorist actors through covert financial 
structuring and weaponized public policy.

Biden also founded and named the Penn Biden Center for Diplomacy and Global 
Engagement, an academic office at the University of Pennsylvania (UPenn) that served as a 
covert staging ground for:

 classified document concealment,
 campaign recruitment,
 narrative coordination,
 and expansion of the Rosemont Network’s influence into Pennsylvania.

This office—partially funded by Chinese-linked interests—became a hub for Rosemont-
aligned officials such as Antony Blinken, Ron Klain, and Jeffrey Zients. It played a direct role 
in shielding evidence, silencing investigations, and protecting the financial apparatus 
connected to Robert H. Biden and Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC.

📌 Alleged Offenses:

 RICO Conspiracy & Corrupt Organizations
 Money Laundering & Financial Fraud
 Bribery & Pay-to-Play Schemes
 Obstruction of Justice & Suppression of Evidence
 Election Interference & Political Violence Conspiracy
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 Material Support for Terrorism (Foreign & Domestic)
 Financial Crimes & Money Laundering
 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 (below) and Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s USC2 (below) for 
detailed criminal activities related to Biden’s role in border invasion facilitation, 
including fraudulent SSNs, human trafficking, illegal immigration, and more.

The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

Motive:
The collapse of border security, under Biden/Harris, led to the influx of illegal immigrants, 
attracted by free money and benefits misappropriated from U.S. taxpayers. This deliberate 
breakdown in border enforcement was strategically aimed at increasing the number of dependent 
voters, to ensure Democrat dominance became permanent, and to guarantee Biden would win a 
second term in office. By facilitating the border invasion, the Biden administration opened the 
gates to individuals seeking to exploit welfare programs, while undermining the integrity of U.S. 
laws and systems.

Consequences:
This deliberate influx of illegal immigrants contributed to numerous drug overdose deaths and 
murders of U.S. citizens in Pennsylvania. The porous border allowed illegal drugs, such as 
fentanyl, to flood into the state, resulting in a dramatic rise in overdose deaths. In addition, the 
increasing number of illegal aliens in Pennsylvania has led to a surge in violent crime, including 
murders committed by individuals who entered the country unlawfully. These deaths, both from 
drug overdoses and violent crimes, are a direct consequence of Biden’s policies that effectively 
opened the border and allowed criminal elements to exploit the system.

📌 Violations Identified:

Pennsylvania Violations (PA):

 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation → Incitement to Political Assassination: 
Biden's "bullseye" directive to target Donald Trump for assassination.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 2706 – Terroristic Threats → Public Call for Violence: Biden's 
statement, "Time to put Trump in the bullseye," inciting violence against a political rival.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy → Coordinated Election Interference: 
Coordinating the suppression of investigations, voter manipulation, and conspiracy 
against the integrity of the 2020 election.
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 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO) → Operation of the Rosemont 
Network: The Rosemont Network’s criminal activities within Pennsylvania, including 
financial fraud and political influence.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 3922 – Theft by Deception → Foreign Funds Funnelled into Personal 
and Political Gain: Through Rosemont Seneca Partners (RSP-LLC), funds were illegally 
funneled from foreign actors into political campaigns and personal benefit.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 5111 – Money Laundering → Structured Concealment of Foreign 
Bribery: Concealment of foreign bribes and illicit funds routed through Pennsylvania-
based entities.

Federal Violations (U.S.C.):

 18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy → Undermining Electoral Integrity: 
Biden’s interference in the 2020 election through suppression, foreign influence, and 
violent rhetoric.

 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – RICO → Operation of a Criminal Syndicate: The Rosemont 
Network’s criminal syndicate utilizing political office and force to secure political and 
financial gains.

 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering → Cross-border Structuring of Illegal 
Payments: Structuring illegal payments and campaign funding, involving foreign entities 
like Burisma.

 18 U.S.C. § 201 – Bribery of Public Officials → Compensation from Foreign Actors: 
Biden received compensation from foreign actors, notably Burisma and CEFC, during 
and after his time as vice president.

 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States → Suppression of 
Evidence: Coordinating the suppression of key evidence, including the suppression of the 
Hunter Biden laptop investigation.

 18 U.S.C. § 1343 – Wire Fraud → Transmission of Unlawful Payments and 
Communications: Biden's use of federal systems to facilitate unlawful payments, bribes, 
and political interference.

 18 U.S.C. § 1117 – Conspiracy to Commit Murder → Use of Federal Law 
Enforcement for Cover: The Mar-a-Lago raid, authorized by Biden’s DOJ, was 
intended to provoke a deadly confrontation under plausible deniability.

 18 U.S.C. § 2339B – Providing Material Support to a Designated Foreign Terrorist 
Organization → Release of Funds to Iran: The release of $6B and $10B to Iran, 
directly enabling Hamas to carry out the October 7, 2023 massacre.

 18 U.S.C. § 2332a – Use of Weapons of Mass Destruction (Conspiracy/Attempt) → 
Empowering Iran’s Nuclear Program: Biden’s authorization of resource reallocation to 
Iran enabled the further development of nuclear capabilities.

Pennsylvania Violations (PA2):

  18 Pa.C.S. § 3922 – Theft by Deception
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  Fraudulent Issuance of Social Security Numbers (SSNs) to Illegal Aliens: The 
Biden administration facilitated the fraudulent issuance of SSNs to noncitizens, granting 
them access to taxpayer-funded benefits such as Social Security, Medicare, Medicaid, 
Housing, SNAP (Food Stamps), and the right to vote.

  Voter Fraud through Illegal Alien Registrations: Illegals issued with SSNs were 
automatically registered to vote, often in Democratic districts, artificially inflating the 
voter base and undermining election integrity.

  Child Smuggling: Exploiting weak border policies to allow child trafficking into 
Pennsylvania, enabling criminal organizations to benefit from forced labor and sexual 
exploitation.

  Endangerment of Minors: The collapse of border control left minors vulnerable to 
exploitation, trafficking, and abuse by criminal organizations operating within and across 
state lines.

  18 Pa.C.S. § 2706 – Terroristic Threats

  Encouraging the Collapse of Border Control: Biden’s policies contributed to the 
collapse of the southern border, resulting in an influx of illegal aliens and drugs into the 
U.S. and Pennsylvania.

  18 Pa.C.S. § 2901 – Kidnapping

  Child Trafficking and Kidnapping: Facilitating child trafficking by enabling 
criminals to bring children into Pennsylvania for forced labor, sexual exploitation, and 
other illicit purposes. The lack of proper immigration control and policy enforcement 
allowed criminal syndicates to target vulnerable children.

  18 Pa.C.S. § 3301 – Arson: The deliberate destruction of border security infrastructure that 
allowed criminal activity and trafficking to thrive, enabling terrorists and illegal migrants to 
exploit the U.S. border systems.

Federal Violations (USC2)

• 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
Coordinating the concealment of criminal conduct and obstruction of lawful 
investigations, including suppression of evidence related to Hunter Biden's laptop and 
involvement in financial schemes that defraud U.S. taxpayers.

• 18 U.S.C. § 1343 – Wire Fraud
Fraudulent transmissions involving the issuance of SSNs to illegal aliens, allowing them 
to claim taxpayer-funded benefits, and wire transfers used in furthering the Rosemont 
Network’s financial crimes.
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• 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
Movement of illicit funds through corporate structures to conceal the origin of money 
obtained from foreign sources, including Chinese and Ukrainian interests, benefiting Joe 
Biden and his associates.

• 18 U.S.C. § 201 – Bribery of Public Officials
Selling access to his father’s position as Vice President, including his involvement in 
pressuring foreign governments for monetary benefits to U.S. political figures through 
the Rosemont Network.

• 18 U.S.C. § 2339B – Providing Material Support to Terrorist Organizations
Facilitating the movement of illicit funds and influencing policies that could benefit 
terrorist organizations or foreign powers hostile to U.S. interests.

• 18 U.S.C. § 2 – Aiding and Abetting
Aiding and abetting the illegal activities of Hunter Biden and foreign associates, 
including the exploitation of U.S. taxpayer resources for personal gain, as well as 
facilitating illegal immigration and human smuggling.

• 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice
Destruction and concealment of evidence related to illegal actions taken by Joe Biden, 
Hunter Biden, and their associates to suppress information about foreign dealings and 
influence peddling during Biden’s tenure as Vice President and President.

• 18 U.S.C. § 1581 – Slavery; Peonage
Involvement in human trafficking operations, including illegal transport of individuals 
into the U.S. to exploit them for labor or sexual purposes. The collapse of border security, 
under Biden/Harris, facilitated the illegal entry of individuals into Pennsylvania, with the 
potential for them to become victims of human trafficking and forced labor.

• 18 U.S.C. § 1583 – Enticement into Slavery
Facilitating the enticement and transportation of individuals into the U.S. for the purposes 
of labor trafficking, sexual exploitation, or forced servitude, taking advantage of the 
porous border policies enacted under the Biden administration.

• 18 U.S.C. § 1591 – Sex Trafficking of Children or by Force, Fraud, or Coercion
Enabling human smuggling and sex trafficking operations by allowing illegal entry into 
the U.S., facilitating the exploitation of minors and adults for forced labor and sexual 
purposes, particularly in Pennsylvania, which has seen a rise in such cases.

• 18 U.S.C. § 2332a – Use of Weapons of Mass Destruction
While this statute is typically used for terrorism, the illegal migration influx, aided by the 
Biden administration’s collapse of border security, has led to the importation of 
infectious diseases like tuberculosis, COVID-19, and others into the United States. This 
can be considered an act of biological risk that poses a serious threat to public health, 
especially with no adequate health screening at the border.
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• 42 U.S.C. § 264 – Control of Communicable Diseases
Facilitating the importation of individuals with communicable diseases into the U.S. 
without proper screening or quarantine measures, exacerbating the spread of diseases 
such as tuberculosis, COVID-19, and other viral and bacterial infections. This can result 
in outbreaks within states like Pennsylvania, which has already experienced issues with 
diseases like tuberculosis and COVID-19 from migrants.

• 18 U.S.C. § 1382 – Entry of Aliens into the U.S. After Deportation
The Biden administration’s failure to enforce U.S. immigration laws has allowed 
individuals, including those with communicable diseases, to re-enter the country. These 
individuals can circumvent health screening procedures, allowing diseases to spread and 
creating public health crises.

• 8 U.S.C. § 1227 – Deportable Aliens
Non-citizens with communicable diseases who enter illegally under the collapse of 
border enforcement and are not properly detained, deported, or medically treated 
contribute to the risk of disease outbreaks. Inadequate screening protocols result in the 
spread of diseases, further harming U.S. citizens and residents.

• 18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Providing Material Support to Terrorists
While primarily for terrorist organizations, this statute could be applied to those who 
facilitate illegal border crossings that allow entry for individuals who pose a health risk to 
the population. This includes those who help transport migrants who might be carrying 
contagious diseases, resulting in potential public health threats.

❌ Sovereign Immunity Assessment – Former President Joseph R. Biden Jr.

As President, Biden may claim limited civil immunity under Nixon v. Fitzgerald. However, no 
form of immunity extends to criminal acts, especially:

 criminal solicitation of political violence,
 financial conspiracy involving foreign actors,
 provision of support to terrorism,
 and attempted assassination.

His conduct occurred outside the lawful duties of the presidency, and many of these violations 
began prior to taking office or were part of a pattern of ongoing concealment and 
racketeering. Biden’s invocation of privilege fails under both federal precedent and 
Pennsylvania law.
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📌 Findings & Supporting Evidence:

🔥 Summary of Role in Violations:

Former President Joseph R. Biden Jr. was not merely protected by the Rosemont Network—
he commanded it. He issued directives, shaped cover-ups, and used every institution under his 
control to protect his family, retain power, and eliminate threats.

🔥 UPenn Biden Center Office Cover-Up:

 Established in 2017 by Biden after his vice presidency.
 Used to store classified documents, hire foreign-aligned staff, and insulate the 

Rosemont financial web.
 Partially funded by Chinese donors (donations tripled after the office opened).
 Key staff: Blinken, Klain, Zients—all placed in senior White House positions.
 The classified material found there was discovered before the 2022 midterms but 

suppressed to avoid political fallout.

This was not academic storage—it was a strategic concealment site tied to financial influence, 
national security breaches, and Pennsylvania-based corporate structures.

🚨 The First Assassination Attempt – 8/8/2022 Mar-a-Lago Raid:

 Authorized by Biden’s DOJ.
 Designed to provoke a deadly Secret Service confrontation under plausible 

deniability.
 SWAT-style raid mirrored false-flag tactics, potentially creating a “tragic accident” to 

remove Trump from the race.

When this failed, the network escalated to the July 13, 2024 Butler attempt.

🚨 The Failed Covert Coup – Laptop Cover-Up (2020):

 51+9 intelligence officials signed a letter to falsely label Hunter Biden’s laptop as 
“Russian disinformation.”

 CIA Director Morell admitted it was drafted to help Biden win.
 Biden was the named beneficiary, with his campaign coordinating distribution.
 This constitutes election interference and conspiracy under both state and federal 

law.
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🔥 “Bullseye” Statement – Direct Incitement to Violence:

 July 8, 2024: Biden declared, “Time to put Trump in the bullseye.”
 July 13, 2024: Trump was nearly assassinated at the center of the Rosemont Seneca 

Bullseye in Butler, PA.
 The statement’s proximity to the attack is undeniable.

🔥 Financial Crimes & Foreign Corruption:

 RSP-LLC used to launder political influence and foreign money.
 Transactions tied to Burisma, CEFC China Energy, and other overseas actors.
 Funds routed through Pennsylvania banks and front companies.

Biden’s administration then released $6B (and later $10B) to Iran, enabling Hamas’s Oct. 7, 
2023 massacre and the advancement of Iran’s WMD program.

🔥 Foreign Policy Weaponization & Terrorism:

 9/11/2023: $6B released to Iran (100-year anniversary of Hitler’s Beer Hall Putsch).
 10/7/2023: Hamas terrorists murdered over 1,200 civilians in Israel and took 

approximately 250 hostages back into Gaza. These hostages included women, children, 
and the elderly, and many remain unaccounted for or in captivity as of early 2024.

 2021: Biden removed the Houthis (Ansar Allah) from the U.S. Foreign Terrorist 
Organization list.
→ This policy reversal allowed Iran to funnel funds and weapons to Houthi forces 
with fewer international restrictions.
→ The Houthis have since launched missile and drone attacks against U.S. and Israeli 
targets, and obstructed global shipping in the Red Sea.

   The timing, beneficiaries, and pattern of state-enabled terrorism reinforce the charge 
of material support to terrorism and deliberate destabilization



🔥 Use of Federal Agencies to Protect the Network:

 DOJ, FBI, and IC blocked investigations into Hunter Biden’s financial crimes.
 RFK Jr. denied Secret Service protection despite escalating threats.
 Trump’s Butler rally featured intentional security failures.
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📌 Final Verdict:

✔ Biden incited political violence.
✔ Biden provided material support to terrorism.
✔ Biden coordinated financial concealment through Pennsylvania.
✔ Biden orchestrated the Mar-a-Lago raid and enabled the Butler assassination attempt.

🚨 Former President Joseph R. Biden Jr. must be indicted under both Pennsylvania and 
U.S. law.
There is no privilege for murder. There is no immunity for treason. There is only justice.

Defendant Profile: Mark A. Milley

Former Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff (2019–2023)

General Mark A. Milley served as the highest-ranking military officer in the United States, 
overseeing the Joint Chiefs of Staff under both Presidents Trump and Biden. Though sworn to 
protect the Constitution and the American people, Milley's conduct reveals a sustained betrayal 
of duty that benefited America’s enemies, weakened U.S. military readiness, and empowered the 
Rosemont Network’s broader objectives.

Alleged Offenses
Milley’s tenure is marked by coordinated derelictions and breaches of trust that rise to the level 
of treason, sedition, and conspiracy:

 The Afghanistan Betrayal: Milley oversaw the disastrous U.S. withdrawal from 
Afghanistan. He ordered the evacuation of troops before civilians, resulting in thousands 
of U.S. citizens and allies left behind, many of whom were captured, tortured, or killed.

 Abbey Gate Massacre: On his watch, 13 American service members were killed in the 
Abbey Gate bombing—one of the deadliest attacks on U.S. troops in recent history.

 Bagram Air Base Surrender: Milley abandoned Bagram, America’s most advanced 
forward operating base, located just an hour’s flight from China’s nuclear facilities. 
China now controls the air base—one of the greatest military handovers in U.S. 
history.

 $90 Billion in Military Equipment Left to Enemies: Despite previously acknowledging 
to President Trump that leaving behind U.S. weaponry was strategically indefensible, 
Milley later claimed it was “more expensive” to fly the equipment home. This move 
armed America’s enemies—including the Taliban, Iran, and their terror affiliates—and 
constitutes theft and destruction of government property.

 Woke Military Transition & Purge of Patriots: Milley led efforts to “transition” the 
U.S. military ideologically. Under his tenure, soldiers were fired for refusing the 
COVID-19 “vaccine,” weakening morale, combat readiness, and recruitment. This 



Back to TOC BB4_11

intentional ideological purge was consistent with the broader goals of shifting American 
military power toward alignment with globalist interests and communist sympathies.

 Pledged to Warn China of U.S. Military Action: Milley privately told his Chinese 
counterpart he would alert him ahead of any U.S. military strike—a breach of trust that 
borders on espionage and treason.

 Concealment of Dereliction in Chain of Command: Milley refused to inform Congress 
or the public of Secretary of Defense Lloyd Austin’s secret hospitalization, which left 
the Pentagon without leadership during heightened global conflict.

 Shielding the Rosemont Network: Milley failed to act on glaring irregularities in the 
military chain of command and refused to investigate financial, national security, and 
corruption scandals involving the Rosemont Network.

 Advisory Role in DOJ National Security Claims: As Chairman, Milley may have 
offered national security cover to justify political actions taken by the DOJ—including 
the August 8, 2022, FBI raid on Mar-a-Lago, which resembled a home invasion 
Swatting operation, falling exactly 53 years after the infamous 8/8/69 Tate-LaBianca 
murders. That earlier massacre, symbolically executed by Rosemont-aligned Hollywood 
operatives, marked the destruction of the Kennedy legacy and was followed 21 days 
earlier by the suspicious death of Mary Jo Kopechne—a native of Wilkes-Barre, 
Pennsylvania.

Involvement in the Border Crisis and Election Interference

 Milley, through his leadership and failure to secure U.S. borders, allowed an invasion of 
illegal aliens, increasing the flow of dangerous individuals and drugs into the U.S. and 
Pennsylvania. This contributed to voter fraud and manipulation, impacting critical 
battleground states and furthering Rosemont-aligned political goals.

 His inaction during the border crisis, and failure to utilize military resources for national 
defense, played directly into the hands of foreign actors and political operatives seeking 
to destabilize the U.S. electoral process.

Border Collapse Reference (PA2 and USC2)

 In his role as Chairman of the Joint Chiefs, General Milley’s inaction and alignment with 
policies that facilitated the border collapse tie him directly to the crimes outlined in 
Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s USC2, which pertain to 
fraudulent issuance of SSNs, human trafficking, and illegal immigration. These crimes 
were carried out as part of a broader conspiracy to disrupt U.S. sovereignty and 
undermine national security. Milley’s failure to intervene allowed criminal syndicates to 
thrive, leveraging weakened border control for financial and political manipulation, 
directly benefiting the Rosemont Network and foreign-aligned interests.

Rosemont Network Ties & Global Implications
By 2023, Milley presided over the U.S. military while the Biden administration transferred $6 
billion to Iran on 9/11, followed by the October 7 Hamas massacre in Israel. His silence, 
obedience, and continued facilitation of policies that advanced enemy capabilities make him a 
key enabler of the Third World War.



Back to TOC BB4_12

Combined with the $90B military forfeiture and Bagram handover, Milley’s actions directly 
funded and empowered enemy operations in a manner consistent with the objectives of the 
Rosemont Network—a transnational criminal and political syndicate with roots in Pennsylvania 
and deep ties to China.

Federal Statutory Violations (U.S.C.)
18 U.S.C. 
§ 2381

Treason – Levying war against the United States or giving aid and comfort to its 
enemies.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 2384

Seditious Conspiracy – Conspiring to overthrow or oppose U.S. government 
authority by force.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 2387

Activities Affecting Armed Forces Generally – Undermining the loyalty, 
morale, or discipline of military forces.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 1001

False Statements – Knowingly making false or fraudulent statements to federal 
officials.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 1512

Obstruction of Justice – Intimidating or tampering with witnesses or destroying 
evidence in a federal case.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 1962

RICO (Racketeering) – Participating in a criminal enterprise through a pattern of 
racketeering activity.

Pennsylvania Statutory Violations (Pa.C.S.)
18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 902

Criminal Solicitation – Encouraging or soliciting another person to commit a 
criminal offense.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 903

Criminal Conspiracy – Agreeing with others to engage in criminal conduct.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 911

Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO) – Engaging in a pattern of unlawful activity 
through an enterprise.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 9402

Terrorism – Attempting to intimidate or coerce the civilian population or 
influence government policy through criminal acts.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 904

Use of Uniform for Deception – Knowingly misusing military status or uniform 
to commit or conceal a crime.

⚖️ UCMJ Violations – Military Crimes Under the Uniform Code of 
Military Justice

Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff (CJCS), Senior Military Advisor to the President

Role: Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff (Active Duty)

General Milley's actions across multiple theaters—including the chaotic Afghanistan withdrawal, 
unauthorized backchannel communications with China, and defense of unlawful military 
planning—constitute serious breaches of military conduct, strategic discipline, and constitutional 
boundaries.
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• Article 92 – Failure to Obey an Order or Regulation (10 U.S.C. § 892)
➡ Milley failed to enforce proper accountability and command structure during the withdrawal 
from Afghanistan, violating standing orders regarding force protection, the safeguarding of U.S. 
military assets, and secure evacuation of personnel.
➡ He ignored intelligence warnings ahead of the Abbey Gate bombing, violating established 
DoD protocols (e.g., FPCON Delta) requiring immediate gate lockdown in threat environments.

• Article 133 – Conduct Unbecoming an Officer and a Gentleman (10 U.S.C. § 933)
➡ His public defense of the withdrawal—despite private awareness of the impending chaos and 
intelligence breakdown—constituted dishonorable conduct.
➡ His failure to intervene before the Abbey Gate bombing, despite advance warning, betrayed 
the ethical standard expected of a senior military officer.

• Article 134 – General Article (10 U.S.C. § 934)
➡ Milley’s pattern of deception, political maneuvering, and fatal negligence discredited the 
armed forces, damaged morale, and led to strategic catastrophe.
➡ The loss of 13 U.S. service members at Abbey Gate due to preventable inaction irreparably 
tarnished military credibility and leadership confidence.

• Article 121 – Larceny and Wrongful Appropriation (10 U.S.C. § 921)
➡ By approving the abandonment of over $90 billion in military assets, Milley enabled 
advanced U.S. weapons and biometric tools to fall into Taliban and foreign hands—amounting to 
misappropriation of U.S. government property.

• Article 108 – Destruction of Government Property (10 U.S.C. § 908)
➡ The loss of Bagram Air Base, abandoned without public explanation or protective strategy, 
resulted in the destruction, misuse, or seizure of classified U.S. military technology, violating 
national defense protocols.

Summary of UCMJ Violations for Milley in the Context of the Border Collapse:

 Article 92 – Failure to Obey an Order or Regulation: Potential failure to take action or 
support military readiness regarding the U.S. border security, undermining CBP efforts.
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 Article 134 – Conduct Prejudicial to Good Order and Discipline: Inaction, support, or 
mismanagement of the military’s role in securing the U.S.-Mexico border during the 
crisis.

 Article 106 – Spying: Any indirect support or failure to act against national security 
threats posed by illegal border crossings.

 Article 132 – General Military Offenses: Allowing military resources to be 
mismanaged or diverted away from national security priorities, including border 
enforcement.

Sovereign Immunity Consideration – Mark A. Milley
Milley’s actions fall squarely outside the protections of sovereign immunity. His betrayals were 
not discretionary mistakes but deliberate, repeated, and conspiratorial. His service as Chairman 
of the Joint Chiefs was exploited to advance the strategic goals of foreign adversaries, 
facilitate treasonous decisions, and execute operations beneficial only to enemy regimes and 
Deep State power brokers. Milley operated as an enemy in the uniform of a U.S. General—
and must be criminally charged under both military and civilian statutes.

Statutory Violations Override Immunity – Mark A. Milley

✔ Federal Statutes
• 18 U.S.C. § 2382 – Misprision of Treason: Failing to report or conceal knowledge of 
treasonous acts.
• 18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Material Support to Terrorists: Providing support or resources to 
individuals or groups engaged in terrorism.
• 18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy: Conspiring to oppose U.S. authority or hinder 
government functions by force.

✔ UCMJ (Uniform Code of Military Justice)
• 10 U.S.C. § 892 (Article 92) – Failure to Obey a Lawful Order: Disobeying or failing to 
enforce lawful military directives.
• 10 U.S.C. § 933 (Article 133) – Conduct Unbecoming an Officer and a Gentleman: Engaging 
in behavior that dishonors military service and undermines public trust.

✔ Pennsylvania Statutes
• 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy: Agreement to commit unlawful acts, particularly 
those tied to political violence or obstruction.
• 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO): Participating in or enabling a pattern of 
racketeering or conspiratorial conduct across state lines.
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Defendant Profile: Lloyd J. Austin III
✔ Role Secretary of Defense (Civilian Appointee, Retired Four-Star General)

Lloyd Austin, though serving as a civilian Secretary of Defense, remains accountable under the 
Uniform Code of Military Justice due to his retired General status. His leadership failures during 
wartime—including concealment of incapacitation, the attempted scrubbing of ambulance 
records, breakdowns in chain-of-command protocols, and gross equipment abandonment—
violate multiple Articles of the UCMJ and expose a national security threat originating from 
within the Department of Defense.

✔ Alleged Offenses
• Obstruction of justice
• Criminal conspiracy to conceal classified materials
• Participation in ongoing racketeering under RICO
• Use of executive authority to suppress evidence tied to national security
• Shielding foreign-tied financial operations involving Robert H. Biden
• Aiding and abetting political incitement through dereliction of oversight
• Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
• Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
• The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

📍 Reference:
• See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Lloyd J. Austin’s role in 
border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of Biden's border 
policies and immigration enforcement. 

📍 Key Evidence

🔴 The 13-Day Disappearance (Dec 22, 2023 – Jan 5, 2024)

 Austin was hospitalized for prostate cancer complications but failed to notify top 
leadership.

 For 13 days, the U.S. military had no clear civilian leader.
 This absence coincided with ongoing Hamas warfare, Iranian threats, and U.S. Navy 

operations under fire.

🔴 Failure to Act on Intelligence Leading to the Hamas Massacre (10/7/23)

 Austin was in office when Biden’s team released $6B to Iran on 9/11/23, the symbolic 
anniversary of Hitler’s 1923 putsch.
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 That money allegedly funded Hamas’s mass murder of 1,200+ Israelis, the worst 
massacre of Jews since the Holocaust.

 Austin either failed to intercept or enabled the policy by omission, implicating him in 
material support for terrorism.

🔴 Dereliction of Duty – Voluntary Surgery During Wartime

 His non-urgent surgery could have been delayed.
 His concealment mirrors Buttigieg’s baby formula scandal, revealing a pattern: The 

Rosemont Network rewards abandonment of duty.

🔴 Possible Knowledge of Biden’s “Bullseye” Directive

 If Austin heard Biden’s directive—“Put Trump into the bullseye”—and took no action, 
he is culpable by silence or complicity.

🔴 Failure to Prevent the East Palestine Attack (2/3/2023)

 As Pentagon chief, Austin had access to satellite intel, psychological warfare units, 
and real-time domestic threat analysis.

 If East Palestine was a false flag or symbolic strike, Austin’s silence makes him 
complicit in a domestic psychological operation.

🔴 Pattern of Concealment

 Austin’s deliberate cover-up of his absence violated civilian-military transparency, 
bypassed national security protocols, and left allies vulnerable.

✔ Detailed Legal Violations

🔹 Federal Statutes (U.S.C.)

18 U.S.C. § 2381 – Treason
Knowingly enabling or concealing acts of war or political violence that benefit foreign powers—
particularly if Austin remained silent about a policy (the $6B Iran deal) that led to the murder of 
U.S. allies.

18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy
Willfully participating in, or enabling, coordinated efforts to obstruct lawful government 
functions or incite political violence through inaction or concealment of operational failures.

18 U.S.C. § 2382 – Misprision of Treason
Having knowledge of treasonous conduct (e.g., Biden’s directive or Iran-backed attacks) and 
failing to report or oppose it as a duty-bound military official.
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18 U.S.C. § 2387 – Activities Affecting Armed Forces Generally
Actively or passively undermining U.S. military readiness by disabling the chain of command 
and withholding his incapacitation during international crisis periods.

18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Material Support to Terrorists
Failure to oppose or investigate Biden’s release of $6B to Iran, a known terror sponsor, while 
serving as DoD head—constitutes willful support by omission.

18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
Disappearing during wartime, thereby concealing executive dysfunction and potential 
operational breakdowns from oversight.

18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements or Omissions
Failure to disclose his hospitalization and health status to key government personnel constitutes 
criminal omission of material fact.

Uniform Code of Military Justice (UCMJ) Violations — Lloyd J. Austin III

Role: Secretary of Defense (Civilian Appointee, Retired Four-Star General)

Lloyd Austin, though serving as a civilian Secretary of Defense, remains accountable under the 
Uniform Code of Military Justice due to his retired General status. His leadership failures 
during wartime—including concealment of incapacitation, breakdown of command protocols, 
and strategic mismanagement—violate multiple articles of the UCMJ.

• 10 U.S.C. § 892 – Article 92: Failure to Obey Order or Regulation
➡ Austin failed to uphold the unbroken chain of command when he concealed his 
hospitalization in early 2024, leaving the Department of Defense leaderless during active global 
threat periods.
➡ He allegedly attempted to scrub ambulance dispatch records from the public record, an 
intentional violation of military notification protocols and medical transparency procedures.
➡ This constitutes a willful breach of his lawful duty to ensure continuity of military oversight.

• 10 U.S.C. § 933 – Article 133: Conduct Unbecoming an Officer and a Gentleman
➡ Withholding knowledge of his medical condition from the President, National Security 
Council, and Joint Chiefs reflects dishonorable conduct incompatible with the office he held.
➡ His concealment endangered national security and eroded internal trust across military and 
executive leadership.
➡ The alleged attempt to obscure ambulance activity reflects premeditated deception and a 
breach of both ethical and legal duty.
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• 10 U.S.C. § 934 – Article 134: General Article
➡ Austin’s actions—including his mishandling of the Afghanistan withdrawal, oversight of the 
$90B military equipment loss, and concealment of incapacitation—collectively undermine the 
good order, discipline, and readiness of the armed forces.
➡ His failure to ensure adequate force protection at Abbey Gate led directly to the death of 13 
American troops during evacuation operations at Hamid Karzai International Airport.
➡ These preventable losses reflect a breakdown of battlefield leadership, operational readiness, 
and risk assessment protocols under his command.
➡ The concealment of emergency medical response data constitutes prejudicial conduct, 
especially during a time of global risk.

• 10 U.S.C. § 921 – Article 121: Larceny and Wrongful Appropriation
➡ Under Austin’s leadership, U.S. military equipment was knowingly abandoned to the Taliban 
without recovery plans, representing wrongful misappropriation of taxpayer-funded property and 
a catastrophic failure of fiduciary responsibility.

• 10 U.S.C. § 908 – Article 108: Destruction of Government Property
➡ The abandonment of Bagram Air Base, including sensitive hardware and national security 
systems, was approved on Austin’s watch.
➡ This led to widespread destruction or enemy repurposing of U.S. defense assets, constituting 
willful dereliction of military stewardship.

🔹 Pennsylvania Criminal Code (Pa.C.S.)

18 Pa.C.S. § 4304 – Endangering the Welfare of Others
By abandoning post during global conflict, Austin placed both civilians and servicemembers in 
danger.

18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation (By Omission)
Knowingly failing to prevent or respond to threats or mass attacks qualifies as soliciting harm 
through silence.

18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
His actions appear coordinated with others inside the Rosemont Network to conceal executive 
breakdown and enable foreign-sponsored violence.
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18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (RICO)
Participation in the systemic failure of U.S. defense, intelligence suppression, and potential 
foreign enrichment within the Rosemont structure qualifies as RICO-eligible behavior.

❌ Sovereign Immunity Assessment – Lloyd J. Austin III

Austin cannot invoke sovereign or qualified immunity for the following reasons:

 Criminal Dereliction of Duty: Voluntarily abandoning post during live conflict and 
documented threats to allied security (Israel, Red Sea).

 Breach of Civilian-Military Protocol: Failure to notify Joint Chiefs, the President, or 
NSC about incapacitation and leave of absence.

 National Security Compromise: Ignoring or enabling decisions (like the $6B transfer to 
Iran) that resulted in terrorism, death, and regional destabilization.

 Violation of UCMJ: Military personnel are not immune from prosecution for 
violations of Articles 92, 133, and 134.

 Conspiratorial Silence: Withholding knowledge of executive incitement ("bullseye") or 
acts of war violates both federal and military law.

Defendant Profile: Ronald A. “Ron” Klain

Role:
Ron Klain served as White House Chief of Staff from January 20, 2021, to February 8, 2023. 
With decades of political and legal proximity to Former President Joseph R. Biden Jr., Klain was 
not merely a staffer—he was a trusted advisor, strategist, and operational enabler for one of the 
most consequential presidencies in modern U.S. history. He played a central role in White House 
decision-making, personnel placement, crisis coordination, and, most critically, narrative control. 
His tenure encompassed the immediate aftermath of the 2020 election interference, the 
suppression of Hunter Biden laptop evidence, and the early management of federal investigations 
tied to Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC)—the firm at the heart of the Pennsylvania-
rooted criminal enterprise now under investigation in multiple jurisdictions.

Klain was uniquely positioned to oversee and shield this enterprise. Through strategic access, he 
helped insulate Rosemont Seneca-related actors from scrutiny, including Robert H. Biden and 
others under potential indictment. He further empowered RICO co-defendants within the 
Executive Branch and the Department of Justice, weaponizing institutional silence to protect the 
President, suppress whistleblowers, and obstruct lawful investigations.

📌 Alleged Offenses:

• Obstruction of Justice
• Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
• RICO Participation and Facilitation
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• Suppression of Evidence Tied to National Security
• Political Persecution Through Abuse of Federal Authority
• Criminal Conspiracy to Cover Up Pennsylvania-Based Financial Crimes Tied to 
Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC
• Material Support for Terrorism (Foreign & Domestic)
• Financial Crimes & Money Laundering
• Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
• Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
• The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

References: See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Ronald A. 
Klain’s role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of 
Biden's border policies and immigration enforcement.

Key Evidence:

 Political Role in the 2020 Election Interference: Klain was deeply involved in Biden’s 
2020 campaign, overlapping with the now-infamous laptop cover-up orchestrated through 
former intelligence officials. If he participated in coordinating, endorsing, or weaponizing 
the 51-intelligence-officer letter, his legal exposure is significant.

 Concealment of Rosemont Seneca Operations: As White House Chief of Staff, Klain 
had the authority and responsibility to initiate internal ethics reviews or refer RSP-related 
conduct to the DOJ. He did neither. Instead, he empowered the network, placing several 
signatories of the laptop cover-up letter into White House roles and national security 
positions.

 Proximity to the August 8, 2022, Mar-a-Lago “Home Invasion”: This raid occurred 
on the 53rd anniversary of the August 8, 1969 Manson Family murders—an event known 
for symbolically ending the Kennedy dynasty. The choice of date, when paired with 
Klain’s strategic role, raises serious questions about symbolic timing, targeted 
intimidation, and ritualized Deep State messaging.

 UPenn Office Cover-Up: Ron Klain worked closely with Former President Joseph R. 
Biden Jr., Robert H. Biden, Antony J. Blinken, and Jeffrey D. Zients during the period 
when classified documents were improperly stored at the Penn Biden Center for 
Diplomacy and Global Engagement in Philadelphia. This office—funded in part by 
Chinese interests—served as a strategic hub for concealing intelligence materials and 
shielding the Biden family’s financial ties. While not geographically located within the 
Rosemont Seneca Corridor, the UPenn office played a central role in extending the 
Rosemont Network’s influence across Pennsylvania. The concealment of documents at 
this location helped protect the network’s financial operations, many of which trace back 
to Pennsylvania-based entities like Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC.

 Suppression of Pennsylvania Financial Crimes: Klain had direct access to ongoing 
intelligence regarding Robert H. Biden’s involvement in RSP-LLC and its associated 
entities. The concealment of this information—especially as it relates to Rosemont’s 
operations in Pennsylvania—places him at the center of a criminal conspiracy with 
jurisdictional implications for the Commonwealth.
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Jurisdictional Relevance to Pennsylvania:
RSP-LLC and its affiliated Rosemont entities operated extensively within Pennsylvania, 
including business filings, banking relationships, and potential shell companies headquartered or 
routed through the state. By suppressing evidence and obstructing investigation into these 
operations, Klain interfered with Pennsylvania’s sovereign right to investigate financial crimes, 
racketeering, and political corruption tied to its jurisdiction.

Statutory Violations – Pennsylvania & Federal
Pennsylvania Statutes:

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 903

Criminal Conspiracy – Agreement to engage in conduct constituting a crime, 
including coordination with others to conceal criminal activity.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 902

Criminal Solicitation – Commanding, encouraging, or requesting another person to 
engage in criminal conduct.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 4911

Tampering with Public Records or Information – Knowingly falsifying or 
concealing public records or documents.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 5301

Official Oppression – Misusing authority to deny individuals constitutional rights 
under color of law.

18 Pa.C.S. 
§ 911

Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO) – Participating in or aiding a criminal enterprise 
with a pattern of illegal activity.

Federal Statutes:

Statute Description
18 U.S.C. 
§ 371

Conspiracy to Defraud the United States – Conspiring to obstruct the lawful 
functions of government through deceit or dishonest means.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 1512

Obstruction of Justice – Tampering with or influencing witnesses, evidence, or 
legal proceedings.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 242

Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law – Willfully subjecting any person to the 
deprivation of constitutional rights.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 1001

False Statements – Knowingly and willfully falsifying, concealing, or covering up 
material facts in federal matters.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 595

Election Interference – Using official authority to interfere with or affect the 
nomination or election of candidates.

18 U.S.C. 
§ 1962

Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO) – Engaging in 
racketeering activity through an enterprise impacting interstate commerce.

Sovereign Immunity Consideration – Ron Klain
Sovereign immunity does not apply to Ron Klain. His acts—if proven—were not discretionary 
functions of his role but intentional misconduct intended to protect a criminal network, suppress 
evidence, and obstruct law enforcement. His role in insulating Pennsylvania-based financial 
crimes tied to RSP-LLC, and his participation in broader RICO operations involving targeted 
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political suppression, place him firmly outside the bounds of lawful immunity protections under 
both Pennsylvania law and the federal Bivens framework.

Defendant Profile: Jeffrey D. Zients

White House Chief of Staff (2023–2025) | Former COVID Czar | Alleged Rosemont 
Network Strategist and Suppressor of Evidence

✔ Role:

Jeffrey D. Zients served as White House Chief of Staff from February 8, 2023 through the end 
of Former President Joseph R. Biden Jr.’s presidency. Prior to this appointment, he was the 
administration’s COVID-19 Response Coordinator and a prominent figure in technocratic 
planning, institutional control, and cross-agency coordination.

Zients brought with him a background steeped in management consulting (McKinsey & 
Company), Big Tech (Meta/Facebook board member), and private equity, making him 
uniquely qualified to stabilize and conceal complex operations within the Executive Branch—
including those tied to financial fraud, classified intelligence suppression, and political 
interference.

His transition to Chief of Staff placed him at the heart of the Rosemont-aligned infrastructure 
during a time of escalating criminal exposure: the Penn Biden Center scandal, the $6 billion Iran 
deal, the 10/7 Hamas massacre, and the Biden administration’s collapse following the attempted 
assassination of Donald J. Trump.

✔ Alleged Offenses:

• Obstruction of justice
• Criminal conspiracy to conceal classified materials
• Participation in ongoing racketeering under RICO
• Use of executive authority to suppress evidence tied to national security
• Shielding foreign-tied financial operations involving Robert H. Biden
• Aiding and abetting political incitement through dereliction of oversight
• Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
• Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
• The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

📍 References:
See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Jeffrey D. Zients’ role in 
border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of Biden's border 
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policies and immigration enforcement.

 Key Evidence:

🔴 UPenn Office Cover-Up (Penn Biden Center)

Zients was in office during the fallout and suppression effort involving classified documents 
stored at the Penn Biden Center—a site partially funded through Chinese-linked interests. 
His White House team participated in damage control efforts, obstructed timelines, and 
concealed who had access to the office.

This operation, deeply tied to Robert H. Biden and other Rosemont operatives, suggests Zients’ 
participation in a deliberate concealment structure tied to national security violations and 
financial corruption.

🔴 Rosemont Network Insulation

As Chief of Staff, Zients had full oversight of White House personnel, legal coordination, and 
crisis management. He did not initiate any investigation into Rosemont-linked officials, nor 
refer potential crimes to DOJ. Instead, he protected the network, oversaw silent removals, and 
ensured no public accountability for internal corruption.

🔴 Proximity to Hunter Biden Protection Operations

Zients played a direct role in preserving plausible deniability for the President’s family. He is 
alleged to have coordinated media narratives and classified access pathways to prevent further 
fallout from the Robert H. Biden laptop and IRS whistleblower complaints.

🔴 Strategic Timing of Appointment

Zients became Chief of Staff just one month after Biden’s secretive mishandling of classified 
documents at UPenn became public. His appointment served as a damage control maneuver, 
allowing for full-scale narrative lockdown and operational suppression.

🔴 Concealment During the $6B Iran Transfer and 10/7 Massacre

Zients was the White House nerve center when Biden released $6B to Iran on 9/11/2023 and 
remained silent when Hamas launched its attack on October 7. He did not alert Congress, nor 
did he recommend the freezing of funds. His inaction reinforces complicity in material support 
for terrorism and seditious dereliction of national duty.
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📍 Jurisdictional Relevance to Pennsylvania:

 Zients played a direct role in suppressing investigations into Rosemont Seneca Partners, 
LLC, whose financial operations trace directly to Pennsylvania.

 His coordination of the UPenn cover-up, a Philadelphia-based office, places this 
federal conspiracy directly within the jurisdiction of Pennsylvania courts and 
prosecutors.

✔ Statutory Violations – Pennsylvania & Federal

🔹 Pennsylvania Statutes (Pa.C.S.):

 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
→ Collaborating with others to conceal crimes related to classified documents, election 
interference, and financial misconduct.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
→ Encouraging or authorizing the suppression of investigations, especially involving 
state-connected RSP financial records.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 4911 – Tampering with Public Records
→ Participation in or authorization of destruction, withholding, or delay of legally 
mandated disclosures tied to the Penn Biden Center.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
→ Using executive power to suppress whistleblowers, journalists, or state-level 
investigators pursuing Rosemont Network crimes.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO)
→ Ongoing participation in a multi-jurisdictional criminal enterprise operating within 
and beyond Pennsylvania.

🔹 Federal Statutes (U.S.C.):

 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
→ Coordinating efforts to obstruct federal oversight and suppress criminal investigations.

 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice
→ Impeding legal or congressional inquiries into classified material and financial crimes.

 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law
→ Denying Americans the right to equal justice by protecting co-conspirators and 
suppressing investigations.

 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements
→ Knowingly covering up material facts regarding classified records, financial 
disclosures, or personnel clearance.

 18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Material Support to Terrorists
→ Failing to prevent or report financial transfers to a known sponsor of terrorism (Iran), 
resulting in mass civilian deaths.
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 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO)
→ Participating in a criminal enterprise whose illegal activities impact interstate and 
international commerce.

❌ Sovereign Immunity Consideration – Jeffrey D. Zients

Zients’ misconduct cannot be shielded by executive privilege or sovereign immunity:

 Misconduct was deliberate, not discretionary.
 His actions involved the concealment of criminal activity, not lawful governance.
 His proximity to the Rosemont Network’s financial operations and Penn Biden cover-

up places him in active participation rather than neutral administration.
 He operated in a post-awareness environment, continuing concealment after classified 

document crimes had been revealed.
 Multiple RICO and conspiracy charges override any civil service immunity claims 

under Bivens precedent and state constitutional standards.

Defendant Profile: Antony J. Blinken

✔ Role: Former U.S. Secretary of State under Joseph R. Biden. A principal architect of the 2020 
intelligence community interference letter and a key actor in the coordinated suppression of 
material evidence related to Hunter Biden’s foreign financial entanglements.
✔ As a senior adviser to the Biden campaign, Blinken personally initiated the Robert H. 
Biden laptop cover-up letter, prompting former CIA Director Michael Morell to gather 51 
intelligence officials to publicly declare the laptop to be “Russian disinformation.”
✔ As Secretary of State, Blinken continued to enable foreign policy decisions that benefited 
the Rosemont Network, while obstructing investigations into its financial crimes.

📌 Alleged Offenses

 Election Interference & Conspiracy
 Obstruction of Justice
 Aiding & Abetting Material Support for Terrorism (9/11/2023 Iran-Hamas pipeline)
 Conspiracy to Commit Financial Crimes
 RICO Violations
 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences
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📌 References

See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Antony J. Blinken’s 
role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of Biden's 
border policies and immigration enforcement.

📌 Key Evidence

🔹 Orchestrating Election Interference with PA Implications
✔ As Biden’s Secretary of State, Blinken was directly involved in the Robert H. Biden laptop 
cover-up, ensuring that evidence of PA-based financial crimes (RSP dealings) was suppressed 
before the 2020 election.
✔ His role in the letter signed by 51 intelligence officials is part of a broader RICO conspiracy 
that influenced Pennsylvania voters.

🔹 Orchestrated the Robert H. Biden Laptop Cover-Up
✔ Blinken prompted Michael Morell to draft the infamous intelligence letter falsely claiming 
the laptop was "Russian disinformation."
✔ This proves he actively worked to suppress evidence of Biden’s corruption to interfere in the 
2020 election.

🔹 Coordinated Election Interference with Intelligence Officials
✔ Leveraged his deep intelligence community ties to ensure Biden’s crimes were hidden while 
Trump was targeted.

🔹 Weaponized U.S. Foreign Policy to Protect the Rosemont Network
✔ Played a key role in diplomatic maneuvers that financially and politically benefited the 
Rosemont Network, including:
✔ Unfreezing $6 billion to Iran on 9/11/2023—a move that directly enabled the Hamas terror 
attack on Israel on 10/7/2023.

🔹 Complicity in the 9/11/2023 Funding Pipeline & Hamas Attack (Terrorism Charges)
✔ On 9/11/2023, Blinken orchestrated the unblocking of $6 billion in Iranian funds.
✔ Less than 30 days later (10/7/2023), Hamas launched the deadliest attack on the Jewish 
people since the Holocaust.
✔ While Biden’s administration claimed the funds were for "humanitarian use," Iran publicly 
boasted that they would use the money however they pleased.
✔ This is a textbook case of material support for terrorism—Blinken helped finance a known 
enemy of Israel.
✔ His role in shaping foreign policy decisions directly contributed to this act of terrorism.
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🔹 Suppressed Investigations & Intelligence That Could Have Exposed RSP-LLC
✔ Under Blinken’s leadership, the State Department obstructed efforts to investigate Biden’s 
foreign financial crimes.

🔹 Aided the Conditions That Led to the Butler Assassination Attempt
✔ By maintaining intelligence cover-ups and obstructing the release of Biden’s illegal 
activities, Blinken created an environment where political violence became the logical next step.

📌 Violations Identified

🔹 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
➡ Charge: Used his position to suppress evidence (Hunter Biden laptop) and obstruct election-
related investigations.
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
➡ Charge: Encouraged and coordinated intelligence officials to produce false election-related 
statements.
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 4107 – Deceptive Business Practices
➡ Charge: Manipulated diplomatic and financial agreements (Iran funds) for illicit political 
benefit.
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
➡ Charge: Coordinated election interference with intelligence officials, directly impacting 
Pennsylvania.
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO Act)
➡ Charge: Aided the structured cover-up of financial crimes within the Rosemont Network, 
directly affecting Pennsylvania.

🔹 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
➡ Charge: Orchestrated the Robert H. Biden laptop cover-up with 51 intelligence officials, 
misleading the public.
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice
➡ Charge: Actively interfered with investigations into Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-
LLC) and its foreign financial crimes.
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements & Cover-Up
➡ Charge: Engaged in deceptive practices regarding the Iran funding and foreign policy 
maneuvers that protected the Rosemont Network.
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
➡ Charge: Helped structure international financial deals that benefited Biden-linked entities, 
including the $6B Iran transfer.
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Providing Material Support to Terrorists
➡ Charge: Played a direct role in unfreezing $6 billion for Iran on 9/11/2023, enabling the 
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financial conditions for the 10/7/23 Hamas massacre.
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy
➡ Charge: Conspired to undermine U.S. electoral integrity through intelligence manipulation 
and suppression of critical evidence.

🚨 Sovereign Immunity Assessment - Antony J. Blinken

🔹 Does Sovereign Immunity Apply to Blinken?
✔ No. While Blinken was Secretary of State, his acts—if proven to be criminal—fall outside 
the protections of sovereign immunity.
✔ Election interference, obstruction of justice, and material support for terrorism are not 
protected acts.
✔ Pennsylvania and federal RICO statutes pierce sovereign immunity for officials engaged in 
corrupt organizations.

Defendant Profile: William J. Burns

✔ Role: Director of the Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) under Joseph R. Biden; 
responsible for global intelligence operations and interagency coordination; directly implicated 
in the approval and concealment of the $6 billion transfer to Iran on September 11, 2023—
funds which emboldened and enabled the October 7, 2023 Hamas terrorist assault on Israel.
✔ Burns appears to have had foreknowledge of Hamas's October 7, 2023, attack but still 
allowed Biden’s $6B Iran funds release on 9/11/23.
✔ This was not an intelligence failure—it was a Deep State maneuver to ensure Hamas had 
the resources to launch its invasion of Israel.
✔ The 9/11/23 event was one of many hidden 9/11 attacks—a scheduled financial strike to 
fund Iran's nuclear program and the 10/7 massacre, with the bloodshed to follow, 
thousands of miles away.
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✔ Alleged Offenses

 Election Interference & Conspiracy
 Obstruction of Justice
 Aiding & Abetting Material Support for Terrorism (9/11/2023 Iran-Hamas pipeline)
 Conspiracy to Commit Financial Crimes
 RICO Violations
 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences
 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

📌 References

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on William J. Burns'  
role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of 
Biden's border policies and immigration enforcement.

📌 Violations List (Fully Restored & Strengthened)

🚨 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation (Allowed the Iran deal while knowing Hamas’s 
intent)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy (Coordinated with Biden & Deep State actors to 
empower Hamas)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2717 – Terrorism (State-Level Political Coordination with Foreign Terror 
Groups) (The Iran funds release directly enabled terrorism)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO) (Covering for international terror 
financing networks)

🚨 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Providing Material Support to Terrorists (Allowed financial backing 
of Hamas through Iran)
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2339B – Aiding and Abetting Terrorism (CIA suppression of intelligence, 
enabling the October 7 attack)
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2381 – Treason (Providing aid to a foreign adversary) (Burns knowingly 
facilitated an enemy attack)
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✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice (Failure to act on available intelligence warning 
of an imminent attack)

📌 Findings & Supporting Evidence

🔥 Summary of Burns’ Role in Hamas’s 10/7/23 Attack

 The CIA had intelligence that Hamas was planning an operation for over two years.
 Burns, as the top U.S. intelligence official, had to know the Iran funds release 

(9/11/23) would be used for Hamas’s invasion.
 The $6B was released just in time for Hamas to complete its war preparations.
 This was not an accident or policy decision—it was an intentional act to fund 

terrorism.
 By allowing the transfer, Burns ensured Hamas had the resources for its 10/7 

attack.

🚨 Sovereign Immunity Assessment - William J. Burns

🚨 William Burns cannot invoke Sovereign Immunity (SI) to escape prosecution.
✔ Sovereign Immunity does not apply when an official provides material support to 
terrorists.
✔ The Iran Funds Release (9/11/23) was not an act of governance—it was an act of 
enabling a foreign attack.
✔ PA RICO and federal anti-terrorism laws override any immunity claim.
✔ Deep State operatives involved in criminal actions can be prosecuted under both state 
and federal law.

🚨 Reference: BB10 Sovereign Immunity Exhibit – This document outlines why Burns’ 
actions place him outside any SI protections.

📌 🚨 Final Verdict: Burns Was a Key Figure in Hamas’s Funding & Attack Preparation
✔ He oversaw CIA intelligence operations and had access to Hamas’s planning details.
✔ He allowed the Iran funds release despite knowing its direct impact on Hamas’s military 
efforts.
✔ This was a scheduled financial attack on 9/11/23, ensuring Hamas had the resources it 
needed.
✔ Burns must be prosecuted under both Pennsylvania and U.S. law.
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🚨 William Burns' actions directly contributed to Hamas’s attack on Israel. This was not 
negligence—this was intentional. 🚨

Defendant Profile: Peter P. Buttigieg 

✔ Role: Former U.S. Secretary of Transportation under President Joseph R. Biden. Buttigieg 
oversaw the nation’s infrastructure, freight logistics, and transportation safety during one of the 
most chaotic logistical periods in modern history—the 2021–2023 supply chain crisis.

Rather than rising to the moment, Buttigieg took extended paternity leave in late 2021 as cargo 
ships stalled offshore, baby formula and medical supplies became scarce, and tractor parts 
failed to reach America’s farms, halting agricultural output. This dereliction of duty left 
millions of Americans vulnerable during a national emergency.

His failure to return during this crisis—compounded by his later negligence during the East 
Palestine disaster—is emblematic of a broader pattern: “Me First, America Last.” This 
personal prioritization over public duty fits the behavioral mold of the Rosemont Network, which 
rewards loyalty to globalist or ideologically aligned outcomes—even when they harm 
Americans.

✔ Alleged Offenses: 

• Dereliction of Duty During National Emergency
• Gross Negligence in Transportation Crisis Management
• Abuse of Federal Infrastructure Funding Channels
• False Public Statements and Obstruction of Disaster Transparency
• Possible Symbolic Signaling Through “False Flag” Events
• Participation in the Rosemont Network’s Strategic Sabotage Operations
• Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
• Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
• The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

Reeferences:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Peter P. Buttigieg’s 
role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of 
Biden's border policies and immigration enforcement.
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🔹 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
➡ Strategic mismanagement of federal infrastructure and emergency response to destabilize 
U.S. logistics and mislead oversight bodies.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements & Omissions
➡ Suppression or misrepresentation of key safety findings regarding the East Palestine disaster 
and other transport-related failures.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1519 – Obstruction of Justice
➡ Deliberate delay or obstruction in launching formal investigations into high-risk infrastructure 
failures.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
➡ Potential diversion or misuse of infrastructure grants and funds—some possibly tied to 
Rosemont Network affiliates or special interest channels.

🔹 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 302 – Criminal Negligence
➡ Willful inaction in transportation oversight, including delayed response to catastrophic 
failures impacting Pennsylvania residents.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
➡ Abuse of office in selectively applying infrastructure support, while allowing regions in crisis 
to suffer due to political or strategic considerations.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
➡ Collaborated with political operatives and corporate actors to cover up the severity and 
implications of multiple infrastructure disasters.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO Act)
➡ Operated in conjunction with known Rosemont-affiliated networks to misallocate resources, 
cover failures, and maintain elite political protection.

❌ Sovereign Immunity Assessment – Peter P. Buttigieg

Buttigieg cannot invoke sovereign immunity for the following reasons:
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✔ Actions Outside the Scope of Official Duties: If proven that he deliberately withheld critical 
federal action during a nationwide infrastructure emergency, his behavior falls outside the 
protected boundaries of discretionary executive function.

✔ Participation in Criminal Conspiracy: Buttigieg’s coordination with other federal actors to 
suppress investigations or strategically manipulate infrastructure outcomes may qualify as a 
RICO conspiracy, which voids immunity protections.

✔ Negligence Resulting in Civilian Harm: His failure to respond adequately to national crises
—including the supply chain collapse and East Palestine disaster—resulted in material harm to 
American citizens and therefore disqualifies him from protections under qualified immunity.

✔ Cover-Up and Misrepresentation: Any provable false statements or omissions regarding 
federal oversight, safety failures, or Rosemont Network involvement eliminate sovereign 
protections.

📌 Findings & Supporting Evidence

🔴 The Supply Chain Crisis
✔ During Buttigieg’s tenure, cargo ships were stalled offshore, tractor parts were 
unavailable, and factories and hospitals faced critical shortages.
✔ Instead of prioritizing national recovery, Buttigieg remained absent for months on paternity 
leave—refusing to return despite the growing crisis.
✔ His failure left farmers, truckers, medical supply chains, and infant care providers without 
recourse, impacting millions of Americans.

🔴 The East Palestine Train Derailment (2/3/2023)
✔ Released hazardous vinyl chloride gas near the PA border.
✔ The name “East Palestine” became national news just before Biden’s $6 billion Iran deal (on 
9/11/2023), which was followed by the October 7 Hamas terror attacks in Israel.
✔ Buttigieg’s delayed response and dismissive tone led many to suspect the disaster was not 
merely mishandled—but deliberately used as symbolic signaling, in line with Rosemont 
Network messaging.

Defendant Profile: Merrick B. Garland

✔ Role: U.S. Attorney General under President Joseph R. Biden. Garland was directly 
responsible for overseeing critical DOJ actions, including the politically motivated raid on Mar-
a-Lago on August 8, 2022. He is further implicated in covering up national security, financial 
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crimes, and corruption linked to the Rosemont Network, obstructing investigations, and shielding 
co-conspirators within the administration.

✔ Alleged Offenses:

• Dereliction of Duty in National Security Oversight
• Obstruction of Justice
• Political Persecution and Misuse of Law Enforcement
• Protection of Criminal Co-Conspirators
• Facilitation of Border Crisis and Social Security Fraud
• Financial Crimes and Money Laundering Cover-Up
• Involvement in Fraudulent Election Practices and Voter Manipulation
• Failure to Act on Border Collapse and Immigration Violations
• Failure to Investigate Rosemont Network Ties to Border Invasion Facilitation
• Material Support for Terrorism through Financial Facilitation

📍 References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Merrick B. 
Garland’s role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader 
failure of Biden's border policies and immigration enforcement.

📌 Violations List (Now Moderated & Legally Stronger)

🚨 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2502 – Reckless Endangerment Resulting in Death or Injury (Garland’s 
authorization of the raid created a foreseeable risk of violence)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2706 – Terroristic Threats (By Action, Not Words) (Use of federal force to 
provoke confrontation against a political opponent)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2717 – Political Terrorism (DOJ action was politically motivated and risked 
violence against a protected political figure)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy (Coordination with law enforcement agencies in a 
politically charged, high-risk operation)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO) (DOJ suppression of evidence 
linked to the Rosemont Network)
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5101 – Obstructing Administration of Law (DOJ suppression of key 
investigations before and after the Mar-a-Lago raid)
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🚨 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law (Abuse of federal agencies to 
intimidate a political rival)
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice (Suppression of critical investigations before and 
after the Mar-a-Lago raid)
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – RICO (Racketeer Influenced & Corrupt Organizations Act) 
(Collusion between DOJ and political interests to neutralize opposition)
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1951 – Hobbs Act (Political Corruption & Extortion) (Using federal power to 
interfere in elections and political opposition)

📌 Findings & Supporting Evidence

🔥 Summary of Garland’s Role in the Mar-a-Lago Raid (8/8/22)

 The DOJ authorized a highly unusual, politically charged raid on the home of a 
former President and active political candidate.

 Trump’s Secret Service detail was present and armed, meaning any 
miscommunication could have triggered violence.

 This was not standard law enforcement—it was a highly coordinated, high-risk 
federal action against a political opponent.

 Whether intentional or reckless, Garland’s actions placed Trump in serious danger.
 The operation shared characteristics with “Swatting” tactics, which are known to 

create unnecessary armed confrontations.

🚨 Garland’s Cover-Up of Biden & the Rosemont Network
✔ Blocked DOJ Investigations Into Hunter Biden → Garland actively interfered with IRS 
and FBI whistleblower efforts to expose Rosemont Seneca’s financial corruption, particularly 
through the suppression of key evidence and delaying investigations into Biden family ties with 
foreign entities.
✔ Manipulated Federal Prosecutions → Garland delayed or suppressed legal actions against 
the Biden Crime Family while aggressively targeting Trump’s allies. This tactic allowed the 
continued operation of the Rosemont Network while hindering investigations into Biden’s 
financial activities.
📌 🔥 Garland’s DOJ Was Used as a Weapon
✔ Failed to Investigate Kimberly Cheatle’s Incompetence → Despite significant security 
failures under Cheatle’s leadership—such as the Butler shooting on July 13, 2024, and the Mar-
a-Lago raid on August 8, 2022—Garland took no action to investigate her leadership. Congress 
uncovered critical issues with Cheatle’s handling of these events, yet Garland failed to appoint a 
special counsel to conduct an independent investigation.
✔ Suppressed Crucial Investigations Related to the Rosemont Network → Garland played a 
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key role in shielding Biden and his associates from scrutiny, allowing the criminal activities of 
the Rosemont Network to continue unchecked.
✔ Failure to Pursue Legal Action or Accountability → Garland’s refusal to investigate the 
link between Biden’s rhetoric and the shooting in Butler, PA, represented a dereliction of duty. 
Given the explosive political nature of the situation, a special counsel was urgently needed to 
ensure an independent investigation. However, Garland failed to act..

🚨 Garland’s DOJ & the 51 Intelligence Officials Cover-Up

✔ Garland played a direct role in shielding the 51+9 Intelligence Officials’ fraudulent 
cover-up of Hunter Biden’s laptop—which ensured Biden’s fraudulent victory in 2020.
✔ The letter falsely labeled Hunter Biden’s laptop as ‘Russian disinformation,’ preventing 
legal scrutiny into Rosemont Seneca’s financial crimes.
✔ By suppressing this evidence, Garland’s DOJ enabled the criminal financial networks of 
RSP-LLC to continue operating beyond 2020.
✔ This was a calculated, high-level conspiracy to obstruct justice, shield the Rosemont 
Network, and silence political opposition.
✔ When deception was no longer enough, these same intelligence operatives escalated 
tactics—from cover-up to political lawfare and reckless use of federal force.

🚨 Sovereign Immunity Assessment - Merrick B. Garland

🚨 Merrick Garland cannot invoke Sovereign Immunity (SI) to escape prosecution.
✔ Sovereign Immunity does not apply when an official commits acts outside the legal scope 
of their duties.
✔ The Mar-a-Lago Raid (8/8/22) was not a routine enforcement action—it was a reckless, 
politically driven operation that created a serious risk of violence.
✔ Obstruction of Justice, Criminal Conspiracy, and Political Targeting are not protected 
actions under SI.
✔ Pennsylvania law explicitly allows prosecution of federal officials involved in organized 
crime (18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – PA RICO).
✔ DOJ corruption under Garland was not an act of governance—it was a criminal 
enterprise.

🚨 Reference: BB10 Sovereign Immunity Exhibit – This document outlines why Garland’s 
actions place him outside any SI protections.

📌 🚨 Final Verdict: Garland Recklessly Endangered Trump in a High-Risk Political Raid
✔ He authorized and oversaw a politically charged, reckless law enforcement action.
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✔ He knowingly created the conditions for a possible violent confrontation.
✔ His DOJ obstructed investigations before and after the raid, raising further questions.
✔ He personally ensured Trump was targeted both physically (in a dangerous raid) and 
legally (through lawfare).
✔ Garland’s DOJ must be investigated under both Pennsylvania and U.S. law.

🚨 Merrick Garland’s reckless actions weaponized the DOJ and placed a former 
President’s life in jeopardy. 🚨

Defendant Profile: Avril D. Haines

✔ Role: Director of National Intelligence (DNI) under President Joseph R. Biden; Haines had 
both the authority and obligation to ensure accurate, timely intelligence reached the proper 
oversight channels. Instead, she became a central intelligence gatekeeper for the Rosemont 
Network, suppressing whistleblowers, obstructing investigations, and controlling the flow of 
politically sensitive intelligence to shield Biden-aligned criminal networks.

✔ Alleged Offenses:

• Obstruction of Justice
• Election Interference
• Criminal Conspiracy & Evidence Suppression
• RICO Violations
• Aiding & Abetting Material Support for Terrorism
• Facilitation of Border Crisis and Social Security Fraud
• Financial Crimes and Money Laundering Cover-Up
• Involvement in Fraudulent Election Practices and Voter Manipulation
• Failure to Act on Border Collapse and Immigration Violations
• Failure to Investigate Rosemont Network Ties to Border Invasion Facilitation
• Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
• Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
• The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

📍 References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Avril D. Haines’ 
role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of 
Biden's border policies and immigration enforcement.

📌 Violations Identified
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🔹 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.) ✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 4911 – Tampering with Public Records or Information
✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression

🔹 Federal Violations (U.S.C.) ✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements to Federal Officials
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2339A/B – Material Support for Terrorism
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO)
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law

📌 Findings & Supporting Evidence

🔥 Summary of Haines’s Role in Intelligence Suppression & Foreign Coordination ✔ 
Haines was a signatory of the 2020 “Russian disinformation” letter, falsely discrediting Hunter 
Biden’s laptop and obstructing justice before the 2020 election.
✔ Upon entering office, she was promoted to DNI, giving her full control of all national security 
intelligence—used not for protection, but for suppression.
✔ Haines ensured no 9/11 whistleblowers or investigators with knowledge of the $6B Iran–
Hamas link were allowed inside the White House orbit.
✔ She failed to sound the alarm on the 9/11/23 transfer of $6 billion to Iran, which directly 
enabled the October 7 Hamas terror attack—making her an accessory through omission, 
suppression, and concealment.
✔ RSP-LLC intelligence was filtered or neutralized, leaving investigators blind to the Rosemont 
Network’s financial activities in Pennsylvania.
✔ Her signature on the 2020 laptop cover-up letter served as a loyalty test, earning her the role 
of “trusted to be untrustworthy.”

🚨 Sovereign Immunity Assessment - Avril D. Haines 

✔ As DNI, Haines’s actions—when proven to be outside the lawful execution of her duties—
fall outside any sovereign immunity protections.
✔ Under both Bivens doctrine and Pennsylvania law, federal actors involved in organized 
criminal activity, including obstruction and conspiracy, may be prosecuted.
✔ Her role in suppressing intelligence and protecting foreign terrorist-linked regimes (Iran-
Hamas pipeline) removes all claim to legal immunity.

📌 Pennsylvania Jurisdiction Established ✔ Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC) is 
Delaware-registered but operated with financial and political intent in Pennsylvania.
✔ Avril Haines’s obstruction of RSP-related investigations in PA constitutes conspiracy and 
official oppression within the Commonwealth.
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✔ Her suppression of intelligence about terror-related financing and election interference ties 
her directly to harms suffered by Pennsylvanians.

🚨 Final Assessment: Avril Haines weaponized the U.S. intelligence community to protect a 
criminal political network, suppress whistleblowers, enable foreign adversaries, and dismantle 
electoral integrity through calculated deception. She is not protected by her office—she is 
accountable to the law.

Defendant Profile: Kamala D. Harris

Role: Vice President of the United States (2021–Present). Kamala Harris was entrusted with 
managing America’s southern border crisis, yet her policies and symbolic messaging led to 
historic border breaches, cartel empowerment, fentanyl trafficking, and violent criminal activity 
in Pennsylvania and beyond. In 2023, Harris and her senior staff were exposed for holding secret 
internal meetings to prepare for President Biden’s possible death in office—drafting transition 
scenarios, identifying “friendly” federal judges for an emergency swearing-in, and coordinating 
political strategy to position Harris as the Democratic nominee. This was not lawful succession
—it was a covert power consolidation effort.

📌 Alleged Offenses:
• Criminal Conspiracy & Racketeering
• Material Support for Terrorism
• Dereliction of Duty & Executive Malfeasance
• Political Subversion & Internal Coup Preparation
• Obstruction of Justice
• Endangerment of Public Welfare (Drug Trafficking, Border Collapse)
• Facilitation of Border Crisis & Social Security Fraud
• Failure to Act on Border Collapse and Immigration Violations
• Financial Crimes & Money Laundering Cover-Up
• Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
• Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
• The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

📍 References:

See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Kamala D. Harris’ role in 
border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of Biden's border 
policies and immigration enforcement.
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📌 Overview of Criminal Liability Harris’s conduct went far beyond inaction—it was 
intentional, public, and systemic. From coded rhetoric to symbolic visits, she participated in an 
open invitation strategy that emboldened traffickers and terrorists. She failed to secure the 
border, obstructed accountability, and contributed to a coordinated criminal conspiracy operating 
through the Rosemont Network. Her actions caused real-world harm—including overdose 
deaths, gang activity, and the murder of Pennsylvania residents.

📌 Statements and Symbolism as Active Participation 

✔ “I haven’t been to Europe either.” When pressed on why she hadn’t visited the border after 
being named to oversee immigration, Harris mocked the crisis—downplaying urgency in June 
2021. 

✔ The El Paso Visit – Symbolic, not strategic. “El Paso” translates to “The Gateway.” Her visit 
sent a narrative message: You’re welcome here.  

✔ Guatemala Messaging – “Do not come” was immediately contradicted by: “We will enforce 
our laws and treat people with dignity.” The contradiction was received globally as a green light.

📌 Specific Incidents – Real-World Consequences of Harris’s Border Agenda 

✔ “Come, We Welcome You” – Open-Invitation Messaging
Over 10 million illegal entrants surged across the border after Trump-era controls were 
dismantled. Cartel networks echoed Harris’s messaging as recruitment propaganda.

✔ Philadelphia: Ground Zero for the Fentanyl Collapse
In 2022, Philadelphia led all U.S. cities in overdose deaths per capita—over 1,400 deaths, with 
83% linked to fentanyl. These substances were trafficked across the open border Harris failed to 
secure.

✔ Danilo Cavalcante – A Preventable Pennsylvania Murder
An illegal immigrant convicted of murder escaped prison in Chester County, triggering a costly 
manhunt. This tragedy would not have occurred under proper immigration enforcement.

✔ Sheriff Jim Ott – A Son Lost to Fentanyl
In 2024, Blair County Sheriff Jim Ott stated: “If the border had been secure, my son would still 
be alive today.” This personal loss underscores the national consequences of Harris’s deliberate 
dereliction.

✔ MS-13 Protection in Sanctuary Jurisdictions
Harris’s alignment with sanctuary city policies allowed violent gang members, including MS-13, 
to embed in Pennsylvania communities—later removed only after criminal exposure.

📌 Applicable Legal Violations
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🔹 Federal Statutes (U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law
➡ Harris used her position to suppress border enforcement and deny lawful protections to U.S. 
citizens.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Providing Material Support to Terrorists
➡ Her refusal to secure the border enabled cartel operations and the trafficking of terrorist-
linked materials.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
➡ Participated in coordinated efforts to suppress investigations and obstruct immigration 
enforcement, and later to bypass presidential succession protocol.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2332 – Acts of Terrorism Transcending National Boundaries
➡ Her policies directly enabled the entry of violent cartel actors responsible for transnational 
killings.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO)
➡ Harris played a strategic role in the Rosemont Network, aiding its criminal expansion via non-
enforcement at the border.

✔ 8 U.S.C. § 1324 – Bringing in and Harboring Certain Aliens
➡ Enabled illegal immigration through refusal to enforce federal mandates and resistance to 
deportation procedures.

✔ 21 U.S.C. § 841 – Distribution of Controlled Substances
➡ Failed border control allowed massive fentanyl infiltration, resulting in U.S. deaths—
especially in Pennsylvania.

✔ 21 U.S.C. § 848 – Continuing Criminal Enterprise (Drug Kingpin Statute)
➡ Her border failures facilitated the uninterrupted trafficking operations of cartel-aligned 
fentanyl networks.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2385 – Advocating Overthrow of Government
➡ Engaged in secret succession planning, bypassing lawful constitutional procedures and 
exploring extrajudicial paths to power.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements and Omissions
➡ Concealed transition plans and judicial outreach from executive oversight bodies, enabling 
unlawful preparation for office takeover.
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🔹 Pennsylvania Statutes (Pa.C.S. & 42 Pa.C.S.)

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
➡ Encouraged illegal entry and actively solicited judicial cooperation to bypass presidential 
succession protocols.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2706 – Terroristic Threats
➡ Her public messaging emboldened traffickers and transnational criminals targeting U.S. 
citizens.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO)
➡ Willfully engaged in a criminal enterprise that endangered Pennsylvania residents.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2504 – Involuntary Manslaughter
➡ Policies directly contributed to overdose deaths and criminal violence across Pennsylvania.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2705 – Reckless Endangerment of Another Person
➡ Knowingly maintained policies that endangered border agents, law enforcement, and the 
public.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 4304 – Endangering Welfare of Children
➡ Thousands of minors trafficked through open border policies suffered injury, abuse, or death 
as a result.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
➡ Abused her authority to pursue unconstitutional advancement toward executive power.

✔ 42 Pa.C.S. § 8318 – Liability for Terrorist Acts
➡ Open-border policies enabled material support for foreign and domestic terrorist 
organizations.

📌 Sovereign Immunity Assessment - Kamala D. Harris 

❌ Harris’s actions fall outside the scope of protected executive functions. The doctrine of 
sovereign immunity does not protect acts involving:
• Criminal conspiracy
• Material support to terrorist networks
• Intentional endangerment of citizens

Her rhetoric and strategic inaction were not policy errors—they were deliberate participation in a 
criminal enterprise. Under Pennsylvania law and federal RICO exceptions, she is 
prosecutable.
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📌 Status: Charged Defendant under multiple Pennsylvania and federal criminal statutes.

Defendant Profile: John F. Kerry

✔ Role: Former Secretary of State, former U.S. Special Presidential Envoy for Climate (Climate 
Czar), and senior Democratic Party figure with deep influence over U.S. foreign policy and elite 
fundraising. Kerry used his diplomatic platform to shield Rosemont Seneca’s criminal operations 
and helped structure international financial agreements that ultimately provided material support 
to terrorist regimes.

📌 Alleged Offenses • Aiding & Abetting Material Support for Terrorism (9/11/2023 Iran-
Hamas financial pipeline)
• Incitement of Political Violence & Criminal Solicitation
• RICO Violations & Corrupt Organizations
• Election Interference & Conspiracy Against the United States
• Obstruction of Justice & Suppression of Investigations
• Material Support for Terrorism (Foreign & Domestic)
• Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
• Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
• The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

📍 References:

See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on John F. Kerry role in 
border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of Biden's border 
policies and immigration enforcement. 

📌 Violations Identified

🔹 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.) 

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO Act)
➡ Engaged in a long-term, structured conspiracy benefiting the Rosemont Network through 
financial and foreign policy corruption.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 3922 – Theft by Deception
➡ Concealment of financial fraud within entities under DOJ and State Department oversight, 
allowing illicit transactions to persist.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
➡ Leveraged government authority to shield criminal activity and obstruct investigative 
agencies.
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✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5101 – Obstructing Administration of Law
➡ Suppressed official actions that would have exposed Rosemont Seneca’s pay-to-play 
schemes.

✅ 18 Pa.C.S. § 4911 – Tampering with Public Records or Information
➡ Participated in the concealment of classified and politically damaging documents at UPenn’s 
Biden Center, indirectly enabling the cover-up of Rosemont-linked corruption and international 
influence operations.

🔹 Federal Violations (U.S.C.) 

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2339A – Providing Material Support to Terrorists
➡ Played a key role in enabling the release of $6 billion to Iran on 9/11/2023—funds later tied 
to the October 7, 2023 Hamas massacre—through prior diplomatic frameworks and quiet policy 
reinforcement.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
➡ Coordinated with U.S. and foreign actors to mislead agencies, obstruct oversight, and protect 
financial crimes tied to Rosemont Seneca Partners.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – Racketeer Influenced & Corrupt Organizations Act (RICO)
➡ Aided and abetted an enterprise (Rosemont Network) engaged in bribery, laundering, foreign 
lobbying violations, and intelligence suppression.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
➡ Enabled the movement of illicit foreign funds disguised as climate, energy, or diplomatic 
initiatives—obscuring their origins and political intent.

✔ 50 U.S.C. § 1705 – IEEPA Violations (International Emergency Economic Powers Act)
➡ Breached sanctions controls through indirect policy support of foreign transactions later tied 
to state sponsors of terrorism.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 953 – Logan Act Violations
➡ Engaged in unauthorized backchannel diplomacy while out of office, including private 
meetings with Iranian officials—subverting formal U.S. foreign policy and exposing classified 
intentions.

✅ 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements
➡ Willfully concealed the national security implications of Rosemont-linked transactions and 
misrepresented the intent behind Iran-related financial policies and UPenn document 
concealment operations.

📌 Sovereign Immunity Assessment - John F. Kerry 
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❌ Sovereign Immunity does not apply.
✔ Kerry’s actions fall outside the protections of official discretionary conduct.
✔ Material support for terrorism and RICO violations pierce all immunity defenses.

🚨 Final Verdict: Kerry Must Be Prosecuted

✔ Kerry structured policies that financed terrorism and protected Rosemont’s criminal network.
✔ His diplomatic, financial, and political protection enabled RSP to operate unchecked.
✔ His continued foreign interference while Climate Czar constitutes shadow statecraft in 
violation of U.S. law.

📌 Status: Charged Defendant under multiple Pennsylvania and federal criminal statutes.

📌 Key Evidence & Supporting Findings

🔥 Role in the Iran-Hamas Financial Pipeline
✔ Kerry helped structure the 2015 Iran Nuclear Deal, which laid the groundwork for Biden’s 
decision to unfreeze $6B on 9/11/2023.
✔ That transfer empowered Hamas, which 26 days later executed the largest attack on Jews 
since the Holocaust.

🚨 Rosemont Origin & Pennsylvania Ties
✔ Kerry’s political power and connection to Pennsylvania-based networks gave Rosemont 
Seneca its foundational credibility.
✔ While not a formal partner, Kerry provided diplomatic and financial cover for the firm’s rise.

🚨 Foreign Policy Clout & Butler Proximity
✔ Kerry’s policies directly aligned with Biden and Rosemont-linked interests, including events 
connected to Butler, PA.

🚨 Kerry’s Role in Shadow Diplomacy
✔ While Climate Czar, Kerry conducted unauthorized diplomatic meetings—violating the 
Logan Act—and possibly setting financial groundwork for further Rosemont-linked crimes.

🚨 The John Heinz Power Shift
✔ Kerry’s ascent followed the death of Senator John Heinz, whose political machine helped 
launch Kerry’s national career.
✔ This moment marked the transfer of fundraising and influence power that would later enable 
Rosemont Seneca.
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🚨 Contrast with Christopher Heinz
✔ Kerry’s stepson cut ties with RSP citing ethical concerns.
✔ Kerry did not. He continued shielding the firm’s operations, helping it escape scrutiny.

Defendant Profile: Alejandro Mayorkas

✔ Role: Former Secretary of Homeland Security, overseeing agencies responsible for national 
security, including the U.S. Secret Service (USSS). His leadership is directly tied to critical 
security failures during two assassination attempts on Donald J. Trump.

✔ Alleged Offenses:

 Gross Negligence & Security Failures in Presidential Protection
 Obstruction of Justice & Suppression of Investigations
 Abuse of Authority & Dereliction of Duty
 Selective Prosecution & Protection of Biden’s Political Interests
 Failure to Secure U.S. Borders & Facilitation of Border Invasion (Tied to his role in 

facilitating weak immigration policies)
 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Alejandro 
Mayorkas' role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader 
failure of Biden's border policies and immigration enforcement.

📌 Violations Identified

🔹 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 302 – Criminal Negligence
➡ Charge: Willful failure to ensure proper security measures for former President Trump, 
leading to severe security breaches in Butler, PA.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
➡ Charge: Abuse of authority by failing to address known security deficiencies, thereby 
compromising the safety of a Secret Service protectee.
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✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
➡ Charge: Coordination with federal agencies to suppress the investigation into Secret 
Service failures, preventing proper scrutiny of the Butler attack.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 4911 – Tampering with Public Records or Information
➡ Charge: Destruction or concealment of security-related records, hindering transparency 
regarding Secret Service protocols.

🔹 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 351 – Attempted Assassination of a Former President
➡ Charge: Negligence and security failures created an environment where an amateur 
gunman was able to open fire on Trump, resulting in the death of Corey Comperatore and 
wounding of two others.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1505 – Obstruction of Investigations
➡ Charge: Suppressing internal DHS and Congressional inquiries into Secret Service 
failures, preventing accountability for the Butler security breach.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1519 – Destruction, Alteration, or Falsification of Records
➡ Charge: Failure to preserve security threat reports and operational logs detailing the 
Secret Service’s handling of Trump’s security.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law
➡ Charge: Failure to provide equal protection to Trump as a presidential candidate, while 
ensuring Biden’s security remained at maximum levels.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – RICO Act Violations
➡ Charge: DHS's systematic pattern of negligence and obstruction created an 
environment of coordinated government misconduct, implicating Mayorkas in a broader 
conspiracy to interfere with the electoral process through violence.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy
➡ Charge: DHS leadership’s refusal to secure Trump’s events, paired with historical 
precedent of political violence, constitutes willful negligence that enabled an assassination 
attempt.
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🚨 Sovereign Immunity Assessment - Alejandro Mayorkas 🚨

❌ Sovereign immunity does not apply.
✔ Sovereign immunity does not protect officials from actions that are criminal, unconstitutional, 
or beyond their lawful authority.
✔ Mayorkas’ failures—if found to be intentional or negligent to the degree of criminal liability
—fall outside the scope of his official duties.
✔ Since Secret Service failures led to an attempted presidential assassination, these acts may be 
prosecutable under both Pennsylvania and federal law.

📌 Key Evidence

🔴 The U.S. Secret Service Failed in Butler – Mayorkas Was Responsible

✔ Mayorkas was directly in charge of the agency responsible for Trump’s protection.
✔ The July 13, 2024, assassination attempt in Butler, PA, occurred due to clear security 
failures, including:

 Lack of rooftop snipers despite precedent for such measures.
 Inadequate screening for potential threats in elevated positions.
 Delays in response time once the shooting began.

✔ Roughly one hour before the attack, the Secret Service photographed Thomas Matthew 
Crooks—labeling him as a person of interest—but failed to act.
✔ Crooks was able to crawl into position just 45 feet from a government sniper, without being 
stopped.
✔ Secret Service agents assigned to Trump were physically incapable of properly shielding 
him —a highly irregular assignment that raises serious questions about intent and operational 
planning.
✔ By contrast, Biden’s security remained at full capacity at all times—showing a deliberate 
disparity in protection.

🔴 The Failed First Assassination Attempt – Mar-a-Lago Raid (8/8/22)

✔ FBI & DHS had jurisdictional overlap, yet Mayorkas failed to prevent a potential armed 
standoff between Trump’s Secret Service detail and FBI agents.
✔ The Mar-a-Lago raid nearly led to gunfire between two armed federal agencies, both 
with "shoot-to-kill" orders—a catastrophic security risk that Mayorkas failed to mitigate.
✔ If an armed confrontation had occurred, Trump could have been killed "justifiably" —
under the manufactured illusion of a federal security conflict.
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🔴 Mayorkas’ Obstruction of Congressional Investigations

✔ Refused to comply with House subpoenas related to security failures.
✔ Blocked internal DHS audits into the Secret Service’s pre-Butler intelligence handling.
✔ Congressional testimony from Secret Service officials revealed major security lapses that 
DHS leadership sought to downplay.

🔴 The Resignation of Secret Service Director Kimberly Cheatle

✔ Following the Butler rally shooting, Secret Service Director Kimberly Cheatle resigned, 
admitting “unacceptable failures” in security planning.
✔ Her resignation was a direct admission that Secret Service leadership failed—Mayorkas, 
as the official responsible for overseeing the agency, shares in this culpability.

Defendant Profile: Kimberly Cheatle

✔ Role: Director of the U.S. Secret Service (USSS), responsible for presidential candidate 
protection during the Biden administration.

✔ Alleged Offenses:

 Criminal Negligence in Presidential Protection: Failing to protect President Trump 
during the two assassination attempts, potentially enabling the actions of external actors.

 Reckless Endangerment & Failure to Secure Candidate Safety: Ignoring intelligence 
and failing to act on obvious threats to Trump’s safety.

 Conspiracy to Facilitate Assassination Attempts on Trump: Potential involvement in 
the orchestration or facilitation of the attacks, whether through negligence, complicity, or 
active participation in a larger conspiracy.

 Obstruction of Justice: Suppression of evidence related to the assassination attempts, 
including mishandling key security data and failing to investigate credible threats 
properly.

 Enabling an Assassination Attempt Through Weaponized Incompetence: Crooks, the 
shooter, may have been manipulated or brainwashed, facilitated by Cheatle’s role in 
overseeing failing security measures and allowing potential psychological manipulation 
of an individual in a position to carry out the attack.
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🔹 Violations Identified

🔴 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 (Criminal Solicitation – Failure to Prevent a Crime)
➡ Cheatle and Secret Service leadership’s inaction in the face of credible threats constitutes a 
failure to prevent a foreseeable violent act, leading to the death of Corey Comperatore and the 
attempted assassination of Trump.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 2705 (Reckless Endangerment – Creation of a Deadly Situation)
➡ By removing standard security measures, Cheatle knowingly placed Trump, rally 
attendees, and law enforcement officers at extreme risk.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 (Official Oppression – Abuse of Authority for Unlawful Purposes)
➡ The Secret Service willfully neglected its duty to protect a presidential candidate, resulting 
in a coordinated security failure.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 (Criminal Conspiracy – Coordinating an Unlawful Act)
➡ The deliberate failure to implement basic security measures in Butler was not an accident
—it was part of a broader scheme to neutralize Trump.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 (Corrupt Organizations – PA RICO Act)
➡ The Secret Service’s role in the systemic failure of security procedures aligns with organized 
corruption patterns, implicating Cheatle in a larger conspiracy.

🔴 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 351 (Attempted Assassination of a Former President)
➡ Negligence and willful security failures allowed an amateur gunman to fire multiple shots 
at Trump, resulting in the assassination of Corey Comperatore and the wounding of two 
others.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 242 (Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law)
➡ The Secret Service’s intentional failure to secure the Butler rally venue deprived Trump of 
his constitutional right to equal protection under the law.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (RICO Act Violations)
➡ The coordinated law enforcement failure in Butler was not an accident—it was a pattern of 
organized corruption designed to create deadly vulnerabilities for Trump while shielding 
Biden.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2384 (Seditious Conspiracy)
➡ The Secret Service leadership’s refusal to follow standard security procedures, coupled 
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with the broader law enforcement dysfunction, constitutes a conspiracy to undermine the 
political process through acts of violence.

📜 Sovereign Immunity Consideration – Kimberly Cheatle

Kimberly Cheatle failed in her duties as Director of the U.S. Secret Service, contributing to a 
political assassination attempt on a former President. Her inaction and negligence under her 
leadership were not incidental but part of a broader pattern of obstruction and complicity, 
enabling the Rosemont Network to operate unchecked.

Sovereign immunity does not apply when a federal official acts outside the scope of their lawful 
duties—especially when their actions lead to political violence, conspiracy, or obstruction of 
justice. Cheatle’s failure to protect President Trump, despite forewarning about regional 
threats, constitutes a breach of duty, and she is not protected by sovereign immunity.

🔥 Key Evidence – A Systemic, Weaponized Security Failure

🔴 The Biden Family Received Maximal Protection, Regardless of Threat Level

✔ Hunter Biden had 18 Secret Service agents assigned to him.
✔ Ashley Biden had 13 Secret Service agents assigned to her.
✔ Both retained these protections under Cheatle’s leadership even after Biden took office.
✔ Despite Hunter’s history of drug abuse and reckless behavior, the Secret Service 
continued to allocate disproportionate protection to him.
🚨 Yet Trump, an active presidential candidate facing clear assassination threats, was left 
exposed in Butler.

🔴 RFK Jr. Was Also Denied Secret Service Protection, Despite Clear Threats

✔ RFK Jr. formally requested Secret Service protection multiple times.
✔ His requests were denied by the same Secret Service leadership under Cheatle.
✔ The Kennedy family has a history of assassinations, making this denial highly unusual.
🚨 The denial of RFK Jr.’s security request aligns with the deliberate underprotection of 
Trump.

🔴 Trump’s Secret Service Detail Was Intentionally Weakened Using "Weaponized 
Incompetence"

✔ Trump’s security detail included agents physically incapable of providing proper 
protection.
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✔ Some agents were significantly shorter than Trump, leaving his head and upper body 
exposed to gunfire.
✔ Secret Service protocol requires that agents be able to shield, cover, and extract the 
protectee in an emergency—this was deliberately ignored.
✔ This contradicts standard Secret Service procedure, which prioritizes agent physical 
capability in security assignments.
🚨 This was not negligence—this was intentional exposure to danger.

🔥 Kimberly Cheatle & The Veil of Incompetence in Butler

✔ The same tactics used by Wray’s FBI—gross negligence to create a lethal failure—were 
deployed in Butler.
✔ Cheatle’s Secret Service played the same role as the FBI in Mar-a-Lago: engineering an 
avoidable security collapse.

Security Failures in PA – A Coordinated Neglect of Duty

✔ Denial of RFK Jr.’s security request was a preview of what happened in Butler.
✔ Ignored intelligence warnings regarding security threats at Trump’s rally, despite clear 
evidence of risks.
✔ Failed to assign rooftop snipers, citing absurd logistical reasons that contradict standard 
Secret Service protocols.

Intentional Security Gaps & Breakdown of Coordination

✔ Secret Service leadership abandoned its core management role, allowing dangerous 
miscommunication between agencies.
✔ Critical protective measures were deliberately omitted, exposing Trump to an easily 
preventable attack.
✔ This failure was not random—it follows historical patterns where incompetence is used as 
a shield to facilitate pre-planned state-aligned operations.
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Defendant Profile: Christopher A. Wray
✔ Role: Former Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI). Wray oversaw 
coordinated federal efforts to protect the Biden Crime Family while suppressing evidence, 
obstructing investigations, and weaponizing federal power against Donald J. Trump. He failed to 
prevent an armed confrontation during the Mar-a-Lago raid and deliberately concealed Hunter 
Biden’s laptop before the 2020 election.
✔ Alleged Offenses:

 Election Interference: Manipulating FBI resources to suppress key information critical 
to the election outcome, including the Hunter Biden laptop scandal.

 Obstruction of Justice: Suppressing key evidence, particularly related to the Biden 
family and election integrity.

 RICO Violations: Participation in a criminal organization to manipulate the political 
process, protect political allies, and undermine federal investigations.

 Attempted Assassination (Mar-a-Lago): Failure to prevent the armed confrontation 
during the Mar-a-Lago raid, which placed the life of President Trump at risk.

 Seditious Conspiracy: Coordinating federal resources for the purpose of political 
targeting, undermining national security, and engaging in unlawful activities against 
political opponents.

 Failure to Prevent Coordinated Law Enforcement Breakdown: Failure to prevent the 
collapse of U.S. border security under his watch, indirectly enabling illegal immigration, 
human trafficking, and the operation of criminal syndicates.

References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Christopher 
A. Wray’s role in facilitating border invasion, human trafficking, and associated 
crimes, tied to the broader failure of Biden's border policies.

📌 Key Evidence

🔴 Wray’s FBI Possessed the Hunter Biden Laptop for Over a Year Before the 
51+9 Intelligence Officers’ Cover-Up Letter – And He Said Nothing

✔ The FBI took possession of Hunter Biden’s laptop in December 2019.
✔ By October 2020, when the infamous ‘51+9 Intelligence Officials’ letter was released, 
falsely claiming the laptop was Russian disinformation, Wray’s FBI had already had it for 
nearly a year.
✔ Not once did Christopher Wray refute the letter’s false claims.
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✔ By failing to publicly correct the record, Wray implicitly validated the letter—
effectively making him Signatory #1.
✔ The deliberate suppression of this information ensured that the American people were 
deceived before the 2020 election.
✔ This was not an oversight—it was an intentional act of election interference at the 
highest level.

🚨 Legal Impact:
👉 Wray’s inaction was not “policy” or discretion—it was deliberate election interference.
👉 This places his conduct outside the protections of qualified immunity and sovereign 
immunity.

🔴 The "Circular Firing Squad" Strategy – Creating a Coordinated Law 
Enforcement Breakdown

✔ Wray, in coordination with Merrick Garland and Joe Biden, and others, engineered a 
law enforcement crisis by placing multiple armed federal agencies in direct operational 
contradiction, ensuring:

 Mass confusion between agencies.
 Internal friction and miscommunication, preventing a unified security plan.
 A systemic breakdown in protective protocols, increasing the risk of security failures.
✔ This same law enforcement breakdown applied to the Butler security collapse, 
ensuring:

 No single agency took full responsibility for Trump’s security.
 Intelligence warnings were ignored or suppressed.
 Critical security measures (rooftop snipers, hardened perimeters) were missing.

🚨 Legal Impact:
👉 Orchestrating systemic security failures is not protected by any form of legal immunity.
👉 If these failures resulted in an assassination attempt, Wray can be held criminally liable.

🔴 Authorization of the Mar-a-Lago Raid (8/8/22) – The First Assassination 
Attempt

✔ August 8, 2022 (8/8/22), Wray authorized an armed FBI raid on Mar-a-Lago with a 
"shoot-to-kill" directive.
✔ The date mirrored past Deep State false flag events tied to the Rosemont Network 
(Manson Murders, Delmont 88, Chappaquiddick).
✔ The raid’s execution was not standard law enforcement—it was an illegal attempt to 
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neutralize Trump before his 2024 candidacy.
✔ Had resistance occurred, Trump could have been killed before announcing his re-
election bid.

🚨 Legal Impact:
👉 Attempted assassination of a former president is a chargeable offense.
👉 Federal immunity does NOT protect violent crimes committed under color of law.

🔴 Contradictions in the Secret Service’s Role – Tactical Failure or Deliberate 
Endangerment?

✔ The Mar-a-Lago Raid exposed a dangerous contradiction between the FBI and Secret 
Service (SS).
✔ Both agencies had "shoot-to-kill clearance"—yet the FBI arrived in long-gun tactical 
formations, while the SS was limited to concealed firearms.
✔ This placed the FBI at a distinct tactical advantage, increasing the risk of a violent 
confrontation.
✔ The conflicting directives between agencies heightened the risk of crossfire, ensuring 
Trump would be vulnerable.

🚨 Legal Impact:
👉 Creating conditions for an armed confrontation that could result in an assassination is 
not a “lawful action.”
👉 Wray loses all immunity protections when he engages in reckless endangerment and 
conspiracy.

🔴 Protection of the Rosemont Network – Shielding Biden’s Criminal Operations

✔ Wray’s FBI covered up Robert H. Biden’s laptop, suppressing evidence of:

 Foreign collusion
 Money laundering
 Bribery tied to Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC).
✔ The FBI deliberately ignored financial crimes linked to Rosemont Seneca, 
allowing Biden’s criminal network to operate unchecked.
✔ Wray facilitated DOJ coordination to shield Biden while weaponizing federal 
agencies against Trump.

🚨 Legal Impact:
👉 Covering up criminal activity while using federal power to target political opponents is 
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an abuse of office.
👉 This places Wray in direct violation of obstruction laws and removes all immunity 
protections.

🚨 Violations Identified (Federal – U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1519 (Obstruction of Justice – Destruction or Concealment of Evidence)
➡ Charge: Wray’s FBI possessed Hunter Biden’s laptop for nearly a year yet failed to 
disclose it, deliberately allowing false narratives about "Russian disinformation" to spread.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 (Conspiracy to Defraud the United States)
➡ Charge: By failing to correct the record, Wray actively participated in an election fraud 
conspiracy by suppressing information that would have altered the 2020 election.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 351 (Attempted Assassination of a Former President)
➡ Charge: The Mar-a-Lago raid, executed with lethal force orders, created conditions where 
Trump could have been killed.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 242 (Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law)
➡ Charge: Use of the FBI as a weapon to violate Trump’s constitutional rights.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (RICO Act Violations)
➡ Charge: Wray’s coordination with DOJ and intelligence agencies to obstruct justice and 
target political opponents.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2384 (Seditious Conspiracy)
➡ Charge: FBI’s involvement in undermining a potential presidential candidate using 
armed federal aggression and election interference.

🛡️ Sovereign Immunity Assessment – Christopher A. Wray

Christopher Wray, as former Director of the FBI, is not protected by sovereign or qualified 
immunity due to his direct involvement in criminal conspiracies, election interference, and 
obstruction of justice. His leadership of the FBI transitioned the agency into a political weapon—
placing his actions well outside the bounds of lawful discretionary conduct.

✅ Qualified Immunity Does Not Apply
✔ Wray violated clearly established constitutional rights.
✔ Election interference and politically motivated prosecutions are not protected acts.
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✅ Sovereign Immunity Does Not Apply
✔ Sovereign immunity shields agencies, not individual actors engaged in criminal activity.
✔ Wray's concealment of the Hunter Biden laptop and orchestration of federal cover-ups are 
prosecutable.

✅ Westfall Act Protections Do Not Apply
✔ Misconduct outside lawful scope is not protected.
✔ Wray’s actions involved willful deception, suppression of evidence, and tactical 
endangerment.

✅ RICO Statute Overrides All Immunity Claims
✔ Wray engaged in enterprise-level corruption under the Rosemont Network.
✔ RICO allows civil and criminal prosecution regardless of federal position.

📌 Statutory Violations Embedded in Wray’s Conduct:
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1519 – Obstruction of Justice
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 351 – Attempted Assassination of a Former President
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – RICO Act Violations
✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy

Defendant Profile: Robert Malley
Role: U.S. Special Envoy for Iran (suspended), Former Obama and Clinton Administration 
Official
Notable Affiliations: Clinton White House, Obama White House, Biden Administration
Primary Allegations: Unauthorized classified communications; foreign influence coordination 
with Iran; subversion of U.S. intelligence protocols; suspected involvement in Signal-based 
encrypted coordination tied to the 10/7/23 Hamas massacre in Israel.

Summary of Allegations:

Robert Malley is charged with espionage-related misconduct, obstruction of justice, and 
material support of terrorism through his longstanding ties to Iranian influence networks, 
unlawful retention of Signal-based communications channels, and strategic involvement in 
backchannel diplomacy during national security crises.
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Pennsylvania Connection (🔥 CRITICAL)

Pennsylvania is not just incidental—it is the operational epicenter of the Rosemont Network, 
and the AI-aligned Bullseye which enabled the 2/3/23 East Palestine train derailment, the 
9/11/23 $6B transfer to Iran, and the 10/7/23 Hamas Massacre. Malley’s conduct ties directly to:

 2/3/23 – East Palestine Derailment (PA border):
o A symbolic and tactical Target Acquisition rehearsal.
o The derailment crossed the Rosemont Seneca Bullseye, whose axis originates in 

Rosemont, PA—where a Kennedy sister attended college.
 9/11/23 – Biden’s $6B Transfer to Iran:

o The very day Adolf Hitler first published his vision for annihilating the Jews in 
1923 (Hitler's 9/11).

o Malley had long pushed for Iranian appeasement under the guise of diplomacy.
o He retained contacts and possibly continued encrypted communications (via 

Signal) with Iranian-aligned operatives even after his security clearance was 
revoked.

 10/7/23 – Hamas Massacre of Jews:
o Just 26 days after the $6B release.
o SignalGate Exhibit documents that Malley was possibly present on a “classified” 

White House call after being suspended, undermining Mossad and NSA 
surveillance.

o His fingerprints are all over the October 7 execution plan—ideologically, 
tactically, and financially.

Pattern of Subversion:

Malley’s career reflects a disturbing consistency:

 Under Clinton: Pushed normalization of terrorist actors under the Oslo Accords 
umbrella.

 Under Obama: Key player in the Iran nuclear deal—strengthening Tehran’s regime.
 Under Biden: Employed multiple Iranian influence agents, per public reports.
 Post-Suspension: Allegedly participated in encrypted communications regarding 

sensitive matters, in direct violation of federal law and national security norms.

📍 Pennsylvania Statutory Violations (Pa.C.S.)

18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
Malley is alleged to have encouraged or enabled acts that directly undermined U.S. and allied 
Israeli national security interests, including actions that emboldened Iranian proxies like Hamas. 
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His continued engagement with suspected foreign agents after the loss of his clearance suggests 
indirect solicitation of criminal activity that resulted in violence.

18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
By employing individuals within an Iranian influence network while serving as the U.S. Special 
Envoy, and maintaining communications channels after suspension, Malley appears to have 
operated within a covert conspiracy to subvert U.S. foreign policy objectives and aid Iran-
aligned militant operations.

18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO)
Malley’s involvement in a sustained, secretive information pipeline—including Signal-based 
messaging and unauthorized disclosure of classified information—represents participation in a 
corrupt organization intended to influence U.S. policy and disable allied defenses.

18 Pa.C.S. § 9402 – Terrorism
Malley’s potential role in communications that directly preceded the 10/7/23 Hamas massacre—
an internationally recognized terrorist act—warrants investigation under Pennsylvania’s 
terrorism statute. The East Palestine derailment and Iran’s $6B financial boost further tie this 
network to premeditated ideological violence.

18 Pa.C.S. § 7512 – Criminal Use of Communication Facility
Using secure, encrypted platforms like Signal after his clearance was suspended may violate 
statutes surrounding the unlawful use of communication tools to transmit classified or harmful 
information.

🇺🇸 Federal Statutory Violations (U.S.C.)

18 U.S.C. § 793 – Gathering, Transmitting, or Losing Defense Information (Espionage Act)
Malley is suspected of facilitating unauthorized access to classified documents and/or 
discussions with foreign-connected actors. These disclosures may have enabled adversarial 
planning that resulted in the loss of civilian life.

18 U.S.C. § 2071 – Concealment, Removal, or Mutilation of Documents
If Malley participated in the deletion or concealment of government records, including those 
related to Iran or Hamas coordination, he could be in direct violation of this statute—particularly 
relevant given the destroyed data in the Asif Rahman case.

18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
Continued advisory activity and strategic influence while under suspension may qualify as 
conspiracy to defraud the government by hindering lawful operations, inspections, or diplomacy.

18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements
If Malley misled the State Department or other officials about his communications or affiliations 
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while under investigation, he could be charged with knowingly making false statements to 
federal agencies.

18 U.S.C. § 2381 – Treason
If the Signal-based communications or intelligence leaks were proven to have directly 
contributed to American or allied deaths, treason charges would be justified for giving aid and 
comfort to declared enemies.

18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy
A broader charge under sedition is possible if Malley’s actions, in coordination with Iranian-
linked agents, aimed to undermine U.S. authority, sow internal division, or facilitate acts of war 
via proxy terror networks.

🛡️ Sovereign Immunity Considerations

Robert Malley’s potential invocation of sovereign immunity would likely fail under the 
following principles:

1. Act Outside the Scope of Duty: Any actions taken after the suspension of his security 
clearance—especially if on a classified Signal-based call—would not be protected under 
sovereign immunity.

2. Criminal Acts: Sovereign immunity does not shield against criminal prosecution, 
particularly when the acts fall outside authorized diplomatic engagement and involve 
intentional harm to U.S. interests or citizens.

Foreign Agent Exception: Malley’s alleged links to foreign state propaganda networks and 
potential coordination with non-state actors (like Hamas) fall outside any traditional protections 
under U.S. law or diplomatic status.

Defendant Profile: Lisa Monaco

✔ Role: As the second-highest official in the U.S. Department of Justice, Lisa Monaco 
played a central role in overseeing federal investigations and enforcement. In her capacity as 
Deputy Attorney General, Monaco had a direct influence on the handling of Rosemont Seneca 
Partners (RSP-LLC) and its financial crimes connected to the Biden family. She acted as a 
legal firewall, ensuring that investigations into Hunter Biden's activities were obstructed and 
that whistleblowers were suppressed. Her position gave her the authority to intervene in critical 
national security matters, including border security and terrorism-related financial 
investigations, yet she failed to act or obstructed the proper course of justice.

✔ Alleged Violations:
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 Obstruction of Justice: Prevented investigations into Rosemont Seneca and Hunter 
Biden’s illegal financial dealings, including foreign transactions and bribery schemes tied 
to multiple foreign governments.

 Conspiracy to Suppress Evidence: Coordinated efforts with other senior officials to 
block the Robert H. Biden laptop cover-up, suppress evidence, and mislead the public 
during the 2020 election cycle.

 Election Interference: Used her position to facilitate intelligence suppression and 
misleading investigations, influencing the 2020 election process and contributing to the 
concealment of evidence crucial for fair elections.

 Aiding and Abetting a Criminal Enterprise: By failing to act on Rosemont Seneca’s 
illegal operations, Monaco enabled a criminal organization to continue its illegal 
activities without facing legal consequences.

 Failure to Act on Classified Intelligence Tied to National Security Threats: Ignored 
or actively suppressed intelligence related to national security threats, including 
intelligence that connected foreign financial crimes with terrorism funding networks and 
illegal immigration operations.

✔ Key Offenses:

 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud: Facilitated the influx of illegal 
immigration by covering up financial crimes related to Social Security fraud and 
border-related human trafficking operations.

 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation: Her active suppression of 
intelligence and evidence related to election interference contributed to illegal voting 
practices and a fraudulent election narrative.

 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences: Monaco played a significant role in facilitating 
the border collapse through weak enforcement and obstruction of critical investigations 
into the Rosemont Network’s ties to illegal immigration.

• Directed DOJ Inaction: Monaco helped shield RSP-LLC from federal investigations by 
refusing to prosecute financial and lobbying crimes tied to Robert H. Biden.
• Blocked Enforcement in Pennsylvania: Despite clear jurisdictional ties to Pennsylvania 
(via RSP-LLC), Monaco failed to coordinate with PA authorities, intentionally obstructing 
any regional prosecutions.
• Suppressed Whistleblowers: Monaco’s DOJ retaliated against IRS and intelligence 
whistleblowers who attempted to expose financial corruption.
• Continued the Laptop Cover-Up: Although she did not sign the original 2020 letter, 
Monaco actively maintained the deception—preserving the election fraud narrative and 
silencing national security concerns well into Biden’s presidency.
• Enabled the 9/11/2023 Iran Payment: Monaco’s office had the duty to review, halt, or 
raise national security concerns over the $6B Iran transfer. She failed—knowingly 
empowering a hostile nation on the symbolic date of 9/11.
• Tied to the Biden’s Butler Bullseye Failure: By shielding intelligence and failing to act 
on classified signals, Monaco helped create the conditions that allowed the Butler attack to 
occur.
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References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Lisa Monaco's 
role in border invasion facilitation, including fraudulent SSNs, human trafficking, 
illegal immigration, and other crimes tied to the broader failure of Biden’s immigration 
enforcement policies.

📜 Statutory Violations – PA & Federal

✅ Pennsylvania Statutes
• 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
• 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
• 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
• 18 Pa.C.S. § 4911 – Tampering with Public Records or Information
• 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (RICO)

✅ Federal Statutes
• 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice
• 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
• 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law
• 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements to Federal Officials
• 18 U.S.C. § 595 – Election Interference
• 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – RICO

Lisa Monaco is not entitled to sovereign immunity.

✔ Sovereign immunity does not apply when federal officials knowingly engage in obstruction, 
conspiracy, or RICO-qualifying conduct.
✔ Monaco’s omissions were not discretionary—they were deliberate, repeated, and 
strategically protective of a criminal enterprise.
✔ Her role in shielding Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC and suppressing enforcement across 
state lines—particularly in Pennsylvania—places her outside the scope of lawful DOJ 
functions.

Monaco’s actions facilitated election interference, national security breaches, and obstruction of 
justice in both federal and state jurisdictions.
By failing to prosecute known crimes, suppressing whistleblowers, and allowing the $6B Iran 
transfer to proceed unchallenged on 9/11/2023, she aided and abetted acts that ultimately led 
to political violence, foreign-sponsored terror, and domestic instability.
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➡ Under both the Bivens doctrine and Pennsylvania state law, Monaco’s actions are not 
protected.
➡ She is liable under 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 (Pennsylvania RICO) and multiple federal conspiracy 
and obstruction statutes.

Defendant Profile: Jake Sullivan

✔ Role:
Jake Sullivan served as National Security Advisor under Joseph R. Biden Jr., overseeing 
U.S. national security policy and foreign relations. Sullivan was a central figure in shaping U.S. 
foreign policy that directly benefited the Rosemont Network and its financial and political 
influence. His decisions contributed to border collapse through weak immigration 
enforcement and helped enable material support for terrorism, particularly Hamas, as well as 
political violence in the U.S. His actions directly facilitated the 10/7/23 Hamas massacre and 
the Biden’s Butler Bullseye, a coded targeting mechanism for political violence.

✔ Alleged Violations:

 Foreign Policy Manipulation: Sullivan’s foreign policy decisions strategically 
benefitted the Rosemont Network and facilitated the collapse of U.S. border security 
through compromised immigration enforcement policies.

 Obstruction of Intelligence: Sullivan suppressed critical intelligence related to 
Rosemont Seneca Partners and Biden family dealings, impeding investigations into 
their foreign financial crimes.

 Material Support for Terrorism (18 U.S.C. § 2339A/B): Sullivan played a key role in 
facilitating the $6 billion deal with Iran in September 2023, which contributed directly 
to Hamas' ability to carry out the 10/7/23 attack.

 RICO Violations: Sullivan is connected to criminal conspiracy activities through his 
suppression of intelligence and his involvement in facilitating the Rosemont Network’s 
financial operations.

 Conspiracy to Suppress Evidence: Sullivan's suppression of evidence regarding Biden 
family dealings in Ukraine and China is part of a broader criminal conspiracy aimed at 

 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s USC2 for detailed criminal 
activities related to Jake Sullivan’s role in border invasion facilitation, including 
fraudulent SSNs, human trafficking, illegal immigration, and more.
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✔ Key Evidence:

 Coordinated Cover-Up of Biden’s Foreign Dealings: Sullivan suppressed intelligence 
related to Rosemont Seneca Partners and Biden family transactions, hindering 
investigations into illegal foreign financial activities.

 Iran Deal Timing & Symbolism (9/11/2023): Sullivan played a significant role in 
unfreezing $6 billion to Iran on 9/11/2023, the centenary anniversary of Hitler’s coup, a 
historically significant date tied to terrorism. These funds enabled Iran's support for 
Hamas and facilitated the 10/7/2023 Hamas massacre.

 Foreknowledge of Political Violence: As National Security Advisor, Sullivan had 
access to intelligence reports regarding domestic terrorism threats but failed to act on 
them, resulting in the Butler assassination attempt.

 Ties to Prior Intelligence Manipulation: Sullivan’s involvement in the Trump-Russia 
hoax and subsequent suppression of intelligence related to Robert H. Biden's laptop 
further highlights his role in manipulating information for political gain and concealing 
Rosemont Network crimes.

Sovereign Immunity

 Sullivan is not protected by sovereign immunity: Sullivan's actions, such as 
facilitating material support for terrorism, obstructing intelligence investigations, 
and covering up criminal activity, fall outside the scope of official duties and 
sovereign immunity protections.

 Bivens Doctrine: Under the Bivens doctrine, Sullivan is personally liable for violating 
constitutional rights, including criminal conspiracy, obstruction of justice, and 
material support for terrorism. His conduct, particularly in the Rosemont Network’s 
operations, directly contributes to election interference and national security 
violations.

Statutory Violations – PA & Federal
Pennsylvania Statutes:

 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy: Sullivan’s coordinated efforts to suppress 
intelligence and obstruct investigations into Rosemont Seneca Partners and the Biden 
family’s foreign dealings make him liable for criminal conspiracy under Pennsylvania 
law.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation: Sullivan solicited and coordinated efforts to 
produce false statements regarding Hunter Biden’s financial activities, facilitating the 
cover-up.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 2709 – Harassment (via Intelligence Suppression): Sullivan’s obstruction 
of investigations and suppression of intelligence violated the rights of the public and 
individuals seeking to expose the truth.
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 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression: Sullivan’s actions to suppress intelligence 
related to Biden’s illegal activities and obstruct investigations represent official 
oppression, a direct violation of public trust.

Federal Statutes:

 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – RICO: Sullivan’s facilitation of Rosemont Seneca Partners’ 
criminal activities and his role in the suppression of financial crimes contribute to 
RICO violations.

 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice: Sullivan obstructed investigations into 
Rosemont Seneca Partners and other critical intelligence that could have exposed 
Biden family dealings.

 18 U.S.C. § 2339A/B – Material Support for Terrorism: Sullivan’s role in the Iran 
deal directly contributed to Hamas financing and the 10/7/2023 massacre.

 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States: Sullivan’s suppression of 
intelligence and foreign dealings amounts to a conspiracy to defraud the United States, 
obstructing efforts to uncover Rosemont Seneca’s financial operations.

 18 U.S.C. § 242 – Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law: By failing to act on 
critical intelligence and facilitating foreign financial dealings, Sullivan deprived U.S. 
citizens of their constitutional rights, furthering political violence.

🔥 51 Intel Signers: Hunter Laptop Letter and Legal 
Violations

In October 2020, 51 former intelligence officials signed a letter falsely claiming that the Hunter 
Biden laptop had “all the classic earmarks of Russian disinformation.” This false narrative was 
designed to suppress critical evidence that could harm Joe Biden’s candidacy and protect 
Rosemont Seneca Partners (RSP-LLC), a network with deep ties to the Biden family and foreign 
governments.

By misrepresenting the laptop’s contents, the signatories actively contributed to misleading the 
electorate, shielding Joe Biden from political damage, and ensuring his victory in the 2020 
presidential election. Their actions not only protected Biden’s candidacy but also obscured the 
corrupt financial dealings connected to RSP-LLC.

While 8 signatories were later rewarded with positions under the Biden administration, the 
remaining 43 signatories contributed to the cover-up, shielding the Rosemont Network from 
public exposure and legal scrutiny.
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Roles of These Signatories

These individuals, many from the CIA, NSA, and other national security agencies, used their 
expertise to discredit the Hunter Biden laptop and prevent investigations into its contents. By 
doing so, they ensured that evidence of illegal foreign financial transactions involving the 
Biden family and Rosemont Seneca was kept hidden from public view.

Protection of the Rosemont Network

Through their actions, these signatories played a crucial role in suppressing evidence that would 
have exposed the Biden family’s corrupt financial dealings and their involvement in a global 
political network. By preventing this information from becoming public, they protected RSP-
LLC, which benefited both politically and financially from Biden’s political influence.

Violations and Legal Implications

The coordinated effort by these 51 signers constituted significant violations of both 
Pennsylvania state law and U.S. federal law. Their involvement in discrediting the laptop and 
obstructing investigations ties them to election interference and conspiracy to protect a 
criminal enterprise.

PA Violations (Pennsylvania State Code)

1. Election Interference (25 P.S. § 3527):
o The suppression of the Hunter Biden laptop story directly interfered with the 2020 

election, influencing the outcome by hiding key information from the electorate.
o Addition/Clarification: You could emphasize how this interfered with voters' 

right to a fair election by denying them full access to relevant information, which 
could have altered their voting decisions.

2. Obstruction of Justice (18 Pa.C.S. § 5101):
o The cover-up of evidence from the Hunter Biden laptop suppressed investigations 

into potentially criminal foreign dealings, obstructing justice at the state level.
o Addition: Consider expanding this point by explaining how the actions of these 

signatories served to protect the Rosemont Seneca Network and its influence 
within Pennsylvania.

3. Conspiracy to Defraud Pennsylvania Citizens (18 Pa.C.S. § 911):
o These individuals were involved in efforts to mislead the public by suppressing 

damaging information regarding the Biden family and their connection to foreign 
business dealings.

o Addition: You might include how these conspiracies hindered transparent 
governance, impacting public trust in elected officials.
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USC Violations (U.S. Federal Code)

1. Obstruction of Justice (18 U.S.C. § 1512):
o The actions of the signatories discredited the Hunter Biden laptop evidence, 

obstructing federal investigations and making it more difficult to pursue criminal 
charges.

o Addition: You can point out the broader impact of these actions on the integrity 
of federal investigations into corruption and election interference.

2. Election Interference (18 U.S.C. § 595):
o By working together to discredit and suppress the Hunter Biden laptop, these 

individuals undermined a free and fair election, skewing public opinion and 
preventing full transparency.

o Addition: Highlight how election interference by such powerful figures not only 
affects the election but also undermines democratic principles.

3. RICO Conspiracy (18 U.S.C. § 371, 18 U.S.C. § 1962):
o The cover-up of the Hunter Biden laptop was part of a broader conspiracy to 

protect Rosemont Seneca Partners (RSP) from legal and public scrutiny, forming 
a criminal enterprise that shielded it from federal investigations.

o Addition: It might help to outline how these actions fit into a larger, ongoing 
effort to protect powerful political figures involved in illegal international 
dealings and what the long-term consequences are.

UCMJ

 If any of the individuals involved were active military members or served in any capacity 
related to military operations, this could be crucial to mention. Violations under the 
Uniform Code of Military Justice (UCMJ) may include:

o Article 92 (Failure to Obey Order or Regulation): If any military personnel 
participated in or facilitated the cover-up, it could be seen as an unlawful failure 
to uphold military law or to act in accordance with military regulations.

o Article 133 (Conduct Unbecoming an Officer and a Gentleman): If military 
officers were involved in actions that obstructed justice or misled the public, they 
could be charged under this article.

Defendant Group: 51 Intel Signers

Signatories Later Employed by Biden (8)

These individuals were not only involved in the cover-up but were also rewarded with positions 
under the Biden administration, demonstrating their deeper role in protecting the Rosemont 
Network.

1. Nicholas Rasmussen – Director, Counterterrorism and Homeland Security, National 
Security Council
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2. Russ Travers – Deputy Homeland Security Advisor
3. Vincent Stewart – Biden Intelligence Advisor (deceased in 2023)
4. Thomas Fingar – Intelligence Community Advisor
5. Michael Morell – Reportedly considered for CIA Director role
6. David Buckley – Appointed to the January 6th Select Committee
7. James Clapper – Ongoing advisor to Biden-linked national security infrastructure
8. John Brennan – Security consultant and media surrogate during Biden transition

Signatories Not Employed by Biden (43)

These individuals did not receive positions under Biden, but their participation in the cover-up 
still made them equally guilty. They were essential in misleading the public and obstructing 
justice to protect Rosemont Seneca.

1. Nada Bakos – Former CIA Analyst and Targeting Officer
2. Jeremy Bash – Former Chief of Staff, CIA & Department of Defense
3. David B. Buckley – Former CIA Inspector General
4. John R. Bolton – Former National Security Advisor
5. David S. Cariens – Former CIA Intelligence Analyst
6. Janice Cariens – Former CIA Operational Support Officer
7. Peter Corsell – Former CIA Analyst
8. Glenn Gerstell – Former General Counsel, NSA
9. James B. Bruce – Former CIA Senior Intelligence Officer
10. Roger Z. George – Former National Intelligence Officer
11. Michael Hayden – Former Director, CIA & NSA
12. Jonna Hiestand Mendez – Former CIA Chief of Disguise
13. Steven L. Hall – Former CIA Senior Intelligence Officer
14. Kent Harrington – Former National Intelligence Officer
15. Don Hepburn – Former National Security Executive
16. Timothy D. Kilbourn – Former Dean, CIA’s Kent School
17. Rick Ledgett – Former Deputy Director, NSA
18. Andy Liepman – Former Deputy Director, Nat’l Counterterrorism Center
19. Ronald A. Marks – Former CIA Officer
20. John McLaughlin – Former Acting CIA Director
21. Michael Morell – Former Acting CIA Director
22. Gerald A. O’Shea – Former CIA Senior Operations Officer
23. John Moseman – Former CIA Chief of Staff
24. Emile Nakhleh – Former Director, CIA Strategic Analysis
25. Leon Panetta – Former CIA Director and Secretary of Defense
26. Larry Pfeiffer – Former Chief of Staff, CIA Director
27. Paul Kolbe – Former CIA Senior Operations Officer
28. Marc Polymeropoulos – Former CIA Senior Operations Officer
29. David Priess – Former CIA Analyst and Manager
30. Pam Purcilly – Former Deputy Director of Analysis, CIA
31. Nick Rasmussen – Former Director, National Counterterrorism Center
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32. Chris Savos – Former Deputy Director, CIA Counter-Proliferation
33. Greg Tarbell – Former Deputy Executive Director, CIA
34. David Terry – Former Chair, National Intelligence Collection Board
35. Greg Treverton – Former Chair, National Intelligence Council
36. John Sipher – Former CIA Senior Operations Officer
37. Nick Shapiro – Former Deputy Chief of Staff, CIA Director
38. Rodney Snyder – Former CIA Chief of Staff
39. Stephen Slick – Former Senior Director, Nat’l Security Council
40. Cynthia Strand – Former Deputy Assistant Director, CIA
41. John Tullius – Former CIA Senior Intelligence Officer
42. David A. Vanell – Former CIA Senior Operations Officer
43. Kristin Wood – Former CIA Senior Intelligence Officer, now Non-Resident Fellow, 

Harvard

📰 Additional Defendant:

Natasha Bertrand – CNN Reporter (Politico at the time)

Although not one of the official 51 signatories, Bertrand played an equally central role in the 
suppression of the Hunter Biden laptop story by publishing the now-infamous “51 Intel 
Officials” disinformation letter in Politico, just weeks before the 2020 election. In 2025, she 
resurfaced as the lead byline on a CNN leak of classified DIA intel, spinning false narratives 
to again protect the Rosemont Network and discredit U.S. national security operations under 
President Trump.

Bertrand’s media role mirrored the intent and impact of the 51 signers — interfering with the 
2020 and 2024 elections, shielding RSP-LLC, and protecting Biden’s credibility using 
weaponized journalism.

Conclusion
The 51 signatories of the Hunter Biden laptop letter were key players in a coordinated 
disinformation campaign designed to suppress critical evidence that could have exposed the 
Rosemont Network and RSP-LLC. Their actions were essential in protecting Joe Biden’s 
political ambitions and shielding his family’s financial dealings, while misleading the American 
public and influencing the 2020 election.

Out of these 51 signatories, 8 were later rewarded with positions under the Biden administration, 
demonstrating the political nature of this cover-up. The remaining 42 signatories—though not 
directly employed by Biden—still played a crucial role in preventing the truth from reaching the 
electorate, thereby enabling the continuation of the Biden family’s corrupt operations.
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It is important to note that one of the signatories, Vincent Stewart, is deceased. However, his 
actions before his passing were still instrumental in the suppression of critical information that 
would have exposed the criminal operations tied to RSP-LLC.

By obstructing justice and interfering in the election, these individuals worked to protect a 
criminal enterprise, ensuring that RSP-LLC remained safe from legal scrutiny. Their actions 
were not just about protecting one individual, but safeguarding a larger network of corruption 
that spanned multiple countries and was deeply tied to Pennsylvania.

As a result of their coordinated disinformation and active cover-up, these signatories are 
complicit in actions that not only influenced the 2020 election but also contributed to the 
perpetuation of a global network of corruption. Justice must be served to ensure accountability 
for all those involved.

⚖️ Sovereign Immunity Does Not Apply:

These individuals were not acting in any official U.S. government capacity at the time of signing. 
Their actions were:

 Politically motivated
 Outside the bounds of lawful duty
 Carried out without government authorization

This places them outside all sovereign immunity protections. Their participation in a private 
political conspiracy removes any shield from state or federal prosecution.

Defendant Profile: Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC 
(RSP-LLC)

✔ Role: The Financial Hub of the Rosemont Network, a central financial vehicle for political 
corruption, foreign collusion, and illicit financial activities, founded by Robert H. Biden, Devon 
Archer, and Christopher Heinz. Additionally, RSP-LLC was designed to ensure that Joe and the 
Biden family remained in power, keeping Joseph R. Biden in the White House at all costs."

✔ Alleged Offenses: Racketeering (RICO), money laundering, conspiracy to commit fraud, 
bribery, wire fraud, and election interference.

✔ Violations Identified:

🔹 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)
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 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 (Corrupt Organizations – RICO) – RSP-LLC operated as a corrupt 
financial entity, facilitating criminal activity across multiple states and foreign nations.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 3921 (Theft by Unlawful Taking – Financial Crimes) – RSP-LLC 
enabled financial transactions designed to extract illicit payments from foreign entities.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 (Official Oppression – Abuse of Government Influence for 
Personal Gain) – RSP-LLC’s principals leveraged government influence to protect their 
financial crimes.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 4107 (Deceptive Business Practices) – RSP-LLC engaged in fraudulent 
financial schemes with international entities.

🔹 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)

 18 U.S.C. § 1962 (RICO Act Violations) – RSP-LLC functioned as a criminal 
enterprise, facilitating illicit financial transactions and bribery.

 18 U.S.C. § 1343 (Wire Fraud) – RSP-LLC conducted fraudulent transactions through 
electronic communications.

 18 U.S.C. § 1956 (Money Laundering) – RSP-LLC facilitated the movement of illicit 
funds through complex financial structures.

 18 U.S.C. § 371 (Conspiracy to Commit an Offense Against the United States) – 
RSP-LLC’s leadership conspired to influence U.S. elections through financial fraud.

📌 Key Evidence:

🔴 Hunter Biden’s Own Admission – The Pennsylvania Nexus of RSP-LLC

✔ Robert H. Biden personally admitted that Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC) 
was named after Rosemont Farms in Fox Chapel, Pennsylvania.
✔ This directly ties RSP-LLC to Pennsylvania, reinforcing jurisdiction under state law. The 
Rosemont Seneca Corridor, where Butler, PA represents the “bullseye”, is crucial to the legal 
foundation of this case.
✔ Regardless of RSP-LLC’s incorporation in Delaware, D.C., or elsewhere, its financial 
crimes have direct Pennsylvania roots, especially as they relate to influence and corruption tied 
to local entities.
✔ Notably, Biden’s Butler Bullseye, where President Donald J. Trump was caught and shot, 
anchors the Rosemont Seneca network within a critical region of Pennsylvania, which also 
witnessed the murder of Corey Competore, a resident of Butler, further underscoring the 
violent consequences of the political and financial activities tied to RSP-LLC.

🔴 RSP-LLC’s Role in Foreign Bribery & Money Laundering

✔ RSP-LLC facilitated financial transactions with foreign entities, including those in China, 
Ukraine, and Kazakhstan.
✔ These transactions were funneled through offshore accounts, effectively shielding them 
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from U.S. regulatory oversight.
✔ Evidence suggests that foreign money was routed through RSP-LLC in exchange for 
political influence and policy favors, creating a structure for money laundering and bribery.

🔴 Connection to the Rosemont Network & Heinz Family

✔ Christopher Heinz was an original partner in RSP-LLC before publicly distancing himself 
from the firm.
✔ Despite Heinz’s departure, RSP-LLC continued to function as a financial conduit for illicit 
dealings and political influence.
✔ John F. Kerry, through his influence as Secretary of State, helped shield RSP-LLC’s 
financial operations from regulatory scrutiny, protecting the Rosemont network's illegal 
dealings at an international level.

🔴 Use of RSP-LLC as a Political Shield for Biden Family Corruption

✔ Payments routed through RSP-LLC helped conceal direct bribery payments to Robert H. 
Biden and other family members.
✔ By creating a corporate veil, RSP-LLC allowed the Biden family and their associates to 
engage in financial corruption while evading oversight.
✔ RSP-LLC’s role in these schemes mirrors tactics commonly used by organized crime 
syndicates, designed to conceal the true nature of illicit activities.

📌 Scope of Named Entities:

While Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC) is named explicitly, several other 
Rosemont-associated entities are still under review. As the investigation into the named 
Defendants and Potential Co-Conspirators progresses, additional entities that facilitated or 
benefited from the same criminal enterprise may emerge. These could include entities like 
Rosemont Capital, Rosemont Realty, and others. Any such entities, once corroborated by 
sufficient evidence, will be subject to future legal action and potential inclusion in this case.

Broader Connection of Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC) to Other 
Rosemont Firms

Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC) is not an isolated entity but rather the 
centerpiece of a much broader network of Rosemont-branded firms. These companies, which 
include Rosemont Capital, Rosemont Realty, Rosemont Associates, and others, operate in 
parallel, often in the realms of private equity, real estate, lobbying, and consulting. The use of the 
“Rosemont” name across these firms reflects a coordinated network, with deep financial, 
political, and business connections.
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Key Rosemont Entities Linked to RSP-LLC:

1. Rosemont Capital:
Rosemont Capital is a private equity firm heavily involved in global investment 
strategies. Its association with RSP-LLC and its founders links it directly to the financial 
ventures that Hunter Biden, Devon Archer, and Christopher Heinz were involved in. 
Rosemont Capital provided the financial backing and market access that supported 
many of the early business dealings of RSP-LLC, particularly in regions like Ukraine 
and China. This network facilitated cross-border investments, often involving political 
influence and corporate lobbying.

2. Rosemont Realty:
Rosemont Realty operates within the real estate sector, engaging in both commercial and 
residential investments. While its focus is different from RSP-LLC, it shares financial 
backing and key personnel, including Hunter Biden and Devon Archer, who used their 
positions in Rosemont Seneca to secure real estate deals that would benefit the broader 
network. The influence and reach of Rosemont Realty helped solidify the power and 
wealth of the Rosemont brand, adding another layer to the firm’s reach in both the 
business and political arenas.

3. Rosemont Associates:
Rosemont Associates is another key entity within the Rosemont Network. As a 
consulting firm, it often acts as a bridge between Rosemont Seneca and government 
officials, facilitating influence-peddling and financial deals across multiple sectors. The 
ties between Rosemont Associates and RSP-LLC are particularly strong, with 
Christopher Heinz and Devon Archer often using the firm’s connections to further their 
political and business agendas.

Broader Implications of the Rosemont Network:

While Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC) may be the most prominent, the broader 
Rosemont network includes a web of financial and consulting firms that have operated across 
multiple industries and countries. These entities often work together to ensure political influence 
and financial gain, leveraging their connections to government figures like Joe Biden, John 
Kerry, and others.

The Rosemont network has been implicated in several high-profile scandals, including those 
involving Burisma, China, and Ukraine. As these Rosemont entities operate in parallel, they 
help shield each other from public scrutiny, with the brand acting as both a symbol of political 
influence and a shield against legal challenges.

Legal and Ethical Questions:

The use of the “Rosemont” name across these various entities raises numerous legal and ethical 
questions, particularly regarding conflicts of interest, influence-peddling, and fraud. The 
ongoing investigations into RSP-LLC and its affiliated entities suggest that the full scope of 
Rosemont’s operations—including its real estate, financial dealings, and political lobbying 
efforts—may still be far from fully understood.
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Given that Christopher Heinz, Hunter Biden, and Devon Archer were all deeply involved in 
the operations of RSP-LLC and its associated entities, the legal repercussions for the broader 
Rosemont network could extend well beyond just RSP-LLC. As more entities and their 
connections are uncovered, they could play a critical role in understanding the full extent of the 
Rosemont network’s influence and its potential legal violations.

Defendant Profile: Robert H. Biden

Co-Founder of Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC | Financial Architect of the Rosemont 
Network | Alleged Operator of Foreign Bribery and Election Interference Schemes

✔ Role:

Robert H. Biden—commonly known as “Hunter Biden”—served as the chief financial 
architect of Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC). As co-founder of the firm, he was 
responsible for executing illicit foreign influence deals, managing laundered transactions, and 
serving as the primary financial bridge between hostile foreign interests and U.S. political 
power—particularly his father, Former President Joseph R. Biden Jr.

While Hunter did not hold a formal role at the Penn Biden Center, the center served as a 
critical shield for his operations—staffed by his father’s closest confidants and partially funded 
by foreign sources, including Chinese-linked donations that surged after the office opened. The 
University of Pennsylvania (UPenn) thus became an institutional firewall that helped the 
Biden family conceal evidence, coordinate messaging, and protect the Rosemont Network’s 
financial infrastructure.

His actions placed Pennsylvania at the epicenter of a transnational RICO enterprise, now 
known as the Rosemont Network, which engaged in election interference, suppression of 
investigations, and financial sabotage of domestic political opposition.

📌 Alleged Offenses:

 RICO Conspiracy & Corrupt Organizations
 Money Laundering & Financial Fraud
 Bribery & Pay-to-Play Schemes
 Obstruction of Justice & Suppression of Evidence
 Election Interference & Political Violence Conspiracy
 Material Support for Terrorism (Foreign & Domestic)
 Financial Crimes & Money Laundering
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 Border Invasion Facilitation & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences

References:
See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Robert H. Biden’s role in 
border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of Biden's border 
policies and immigration enforcement.

📌 Violations Identified:
Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.):

 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
→ Use of RSP-LLC as a vehicle for interstate and international financial crimes.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO)
→ Participation in a continuing criminal enterprise involving bribery, obstruction, and 
foreign collusion.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 5111 – Money Laundering
→ Routing foreign funds through Pennsylvania-based banks, shells, and legal firms.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 4701 – Bribery in Official and Political Matters
→ Payments received from Burisma, CEFC, and other foreign firms in exchange for 
political influence.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 3922 – Theft by Deception
→ Misrepresentation of services in exchange for high-dollar payments intended to 
manipulate U.S. policy.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
→ Using suppressed evidence and DOJ interference to distort democratic outcomes.

Federal Violations (U.S.C.):

 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – RICO
→ Ongoing racketeering enterprise involving domestic and foreign partners to corrupt 
political processes.

 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
→ Movement of illicit foreign capital through corporate and banking structures.

 18 U.S.C. § 201 – Bribery of Public Officials
→ Selling access to his father’s position as Vice President, including national policy 
leverage.

 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
→ Coordinating the concealment of criminal conduct and obstruction of lawful 
investigations.

 18 U.S.C. § 1343 – Wire Fraud
→ Fraudulent transmissions involving foreign investment and domestic banking 
infrastructure.
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 18 U.S.C. § 1512 – Obstruction of Justice
→ Destruction and concealment of financial records, emails, and laptop evidence.

📌 Findings & Supporting Evidence

🔥 Summary of Role in Violations:

Robert H. Biden was not a passive recipient of influence—he built the machinery that enabled 
the Rosemont Network to operate. From structuring high-level bribery deals to shielding 
criminal proceeds, his fingerprints are found on every phase of the operation—including the 
events leading to the 2024 Butler assassination attempt.

🚨 RSP’s Founding & Pennsylvania Connection (2009):

 RSP-LLC’s name and structure trace back to Rosemont Farms (Fox Chapel, PA) and 
Seneca, PA, grounding the firm—and its crimes—within Pennsylvania jurisdiction.

 Biden and Devin Archer founded RSP-LLC as a front company for high-level 
international transactions designed to influence U.S. policy decisions through cash 
payments.

 These operations were routed through PA-based financial institutions and legal 
entities, giving the state clear prosecutorial authority.

🚨 The Rosemont Seneca Bullseye (RSB):

 Robert H. Biden helped shape the geographic and financial framework behind the 
Rosemont Seneca Bullseye, which ultimately became the target zone for the 2024 
Butler attack.

 His financial structuring enabled the positioning of foreign influence within 
Pennsylvania, giving the attack symbolic and operational alignment.

🚨 Foreign Money Laundering & Bribery Scheme:

 Millions of dollars flowed from Ukraine (Burisma), China (CEFC), and Russia-linked 
oligarchs directly to RSP-LLC.

 These funds were funneled through PA-based and Delaware-linked structures, 
enabling Biden family enrichment through disguised lobbying and policy 
manipulation.

 Testimony and emails confirm Hunter's role in leveraging his father’s name for direct 
payment—often described as “The Big Guy,” as in “10% to the Big Guy.”
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🚨 Election Interference & Obstruction of Justice:

 Robert H. Biden’s laptop contained direct evidence of the Rosemont Network’s 
operations, but was suppressed by intelligence operatives acting on behalf of Biden’s 
political allies.

 This suppression benefited not just Robert, but the entire Biden campaign, 
constituting a coordinated election interference scheme.

 Key emails reveal Hunter’s involvement in advance briefings and damage control 
planning related to the cover-up.

🚨 UPenn Connection & Strategic Intelligence Concealment:

 While Biden did not hold an official position at the Penn Biden Center, he benefited 
directly from its operations.

 The Center—staffed by his father’s closest political operatives—was used to store 
classified material and manage Rosemont-related coordination.

 Multiple foreign-linked staff members rotated through UPenn and into the White House, 
shielding financial actors from exposure.

 This gives Pennsylvania a secondary jurisdictional basis for investigating financial 
crimes facilitated through an academic institution in its capital city.

🚨 Burisma & Energy Corruption:

 Robert H. Biden’s board seat at Burisma was secured not for expertise, but for 
protection, confirmed by executives on record.

 These “business arrangements” served as cover for cash transfers, international 
manipulation of U.S. policy, and the enrichment of the Biden-Rosemont syndicate.

🚨 Fraudulent Tax & Banking Records:

 Whistleblowers have provided sworn testimony about intentional manipulation of 
financial data and omission of foreign income.

 Co-founder Eric Schwerin admitted to participating in these actions, implicating Hunter 
in multi-layered tax evasion and concealment.

🚨 Connection to the 2024 Butler Assassination Attempt:

 The operational footprint that allowed Trump to be targeted in Butler, PA was financially 
laid by RSP-LLC’s long-range planning.
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 Robert H. Biden created and enabled the infrastructure that transformed the Rosemont 
alignment into a weaponized bullseye.

📌 Final Verdict:

✔ Robert H. Biden wasn’t a victim of addiction—he was an active conspirator in 
international bribery, classified concealment, and political suppression.
✔ His financial schemes directly enabled the formation of the Rosemont Seneca Bullseye.
✔ His laptop revealed everything—but the system protected him.

🚨 He must now be held accountable—under Pennsylvania and federal law—for financial 
crimes, election interference, and material contributions to a conspiracy involving political 
assassination.

Defendant Profile: George Soros & Alexander Alex 
F.G. Soros

✔ Role:
George Soros (born György Schwartz) is the founder and chairman of Soros Fund 
Management and the Open Society Foundations (OSF). His son, Alexander G. Soros, has 
increasingly taken an active role in managing Soros’ network. Together, they are key figures 
behind a global influence campaign aimed at manipulating financial systems, destabilizing 
borders, and controlling political outcomes in the U.S. and abroad. Through their extensive 
financial contributions, they have shaped U.S. domestic and foreign policy in ways that benefit 
their globalist agenda, most notably in facilitating mass immigration, suppressing investigations, 
and funding organizations aligned with their political interests. Their network has direct ties to 
the Rosemont Network, influencing U.S. elections and global conflicts.

The information provided outlines George Soros' and Alexander Soros' connection to the 
Rosemont Network and their involvement in a range of alleged offenses, including terrorism 
funding, election interference, financial crimes, and their role in border destabilization. 
Given their financial influence, Soros' role in the Weather Underground-linked revolutionary 
agenda is included, highlighting their support for policies that create social instability and 
promote the collapse of the U.S. judicial system. Their financial contributions to organizations 
and DAs advocating Zero Cash Bail are also central to their alleged activities.

✔ Alleged Offenses:

 Election Interference & Conspiracy
 Obstruction of Justice
 Material Support for Terrorism (Iran-Hamas Pipeline)
 Conspiracy to Commit Financial Crimes
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 RICO Violations
 Facilitation of Border Invasions
 Human Trafficking & Social Security Fraud
 Fraudulent Election Practices & Voter Manipulation
 The Border Crisis & Its Consequences
 Soros-Funded Political Manipulation & Violence

📌 References
See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.’s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on George and Alexander 
G. Soros’ role in border invasion facilitation and related crimes, tied to the broader failure of 
Biden's border policies and immigration enforcement. Their involvement in financing terrorism, 
election interference, and destabilizing international conflicts plays a direct role in undermining 
U.S. sovereignty and supporting globalist agendas.

Key Evidence

🔹 Orchestrating Election Interference & Border Manipulation

 George Soros has been a major financier of left-wing political movements in the U.S., 
often using his wealth to fund organizations that undermine national sovereignty, 
destabilize borders, and influence immigration policy. His Open Society Foundations 
(OSF) have backed NGOs and advocacy groups that promote open-border policies, 
fueling the collapse of U.S. border security and facilitating illegal immigration.

 Soros has also been linked to the 2020 U.S. Presidential Election interference, using his 
financial empire to support organizations that promoted false narratives and election 
manipulation efforts.

🔹 Material Support for Terrorism (Iran-Hamas Pipeline)

 Soros indirectly facilitated the unfreezing of $6 billion to Iran in 2023, which was used 
to fund Hamas, enabling the 10/7/2023 Hamas massacre. The funds, which were 
claimed to be for humanitarian purposes, were directly used by Iran to finance 
terrorism, including acts of violence against U.S. allies. This represents a violation of 18 
U.S.C. § 2339A, providing material support for terrorism.

 Soros’ financial influence extends to destabilizing the Middle East, and through his 
network, he has been involved in efforts that promote the interests of state sponsors of 
terrorism.

🔹 Financial Crimes & Conspiracy

 Through Soros Fund Management and OSF, George and Alexander G. Soros have 
orchestrated a global financial conspiracy to destabilize U.S. borders and support 
foreign policy decisions that advance their political goals.
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 They are complicit in money laundering and fraudulent financial practices that benefit 
the Rosemont Network and further the globalist agenda. This includes supporting 
illegal immigration networks and human trafficking operations, which exploit 
vulnerable populations for political gain.

🔹 Suppression of Intelligence & Political Manipulation

 Soros’ vast financial network has funded efforts to suppress intelligence, obstruct 
investigations into Biden family financial crimes, and interfere with U.S. election 
processes. This includes suppressing evidence that could have exposed Rosemont 
Seneca Partners (RSP-LLC) and its ties to foreign financial corruption.

🔹 Creating Conditions for Political Violence

 Through his financial influence and political manipulation, Soros has created conditions 
that promote political violence, particularly in the immigration and border policy 
areas. His support for violent left-wing movements and organizations has contributed to 
a surge in political unrest and instability, particularly through funding groups that 
encourage illegal border crossings and anti-American sentiment.

🔹 Weather Underground Connection:

 George Soros' financial support for radical DAs, including Chesa Boudin, is seen as an 
extension of the Weather Underground’s revolutionary ideology. These DAs push for 
Zero Cash Bail policies that align with the Weather Underground's goal to overthrow 
the U.S. judicial system.

🔹 Zero Cash Bail:

 Through his funding, Soros has played a major role in facilitating Zero Cash Bail 
policies that prioritize leniency over law and order, contributing to widespread criminal 
activity and destabilization in major cities like San Francisco and Los Angeles.

🔹 Soros’ Revolutionary Influence:

 Soros’ network, via his Open Society Foundations, has actively supported globalist 
causes that aim to destabilize borders and political structures, promoting radical reform 
policies that ultimately lead to social chaos.

Violations Identified

🔹 Pennsylvania Violations (Pa.C.S.)
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 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO Act)
➡ Charge: Soros’ financial influence and manipulation of political events constitute a 
corrupt organization, directly benefiting the Rosemont Network and contributing to 
border instability.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
➡ Charge: Soros is involved in a criminal conspiracy to manipulate U.S. elections, 
fund terrorism, and destabilize U.S. borders.

 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
➡ Charge: Soros and his network have encouraged and financed organizations that 
engage in illegal immigration, human trafficking, and terrorism support.

   18 Pa.C.S. § 4101 – Forgery
➡ Charge: Soros facilitated forged documentation for the purpose of enabling illegal 
immigrants to enter the U.S. and claim benefits, further destabilizing border security 
and election integrity.

   18 Pa.C.S. § 2709.1 – Cyber Harassment
➡ Charge: Soros’ network utilized cyber manipulation to affect public perception 
regarding U.S. border security, suppressing dissent on immigration and border policies. 
The manipulation created confusion and chaos, hindering the American public’s 
awareness of the real consequences of the border crisis.

   18 Pa.C.S. § 5124 – Interception of Communications
➡ Charge: Soros’ network played a role in enabling espionage and unauthorized 
communication interceptions tied to election interference and terrorist financing, 
including hacking attempts related to U.S. immigration enforcement.

🔹 Federal Violations (U.S.C.)

 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
➡ Charge: Soros’ financial activities have helped launder money used for terrorist 
financing, including the $6 billion that funded Hamas.

 18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy
➡ Charge: Soros has worked to undermine U.S. political integrity and support actions 
that disrupt the U.S. electoral process and national security.   18 U.S.C. § 2339C – 
Financing of Terrorism
➡ Charge: Soros’ financial contributions enabled the funding of groups like Hamas and 
Hezbollah, which carried out direct attacks on U.S. allies and interests, including the 
October 7, 2023 attack.

 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements & Cover-Up
➡ Charge: Soros has made false statements in efforts to cover up his financial ties to 
terrorism and human trafficking networks. These cover-ups helped protect his 
financial interests in destabilizing U.S. domestic and foreign policies.

 18 U.S.C. § 1590 – Trafficking in Persons
➡ Charge: Soros, through his financial and political backing, has supported human 
trafficking networks that exploit vulnerable immigrants, smuggling them into the U.S. 
for forced labor and sex trafficking.
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 18 U.S.C. § 2332b – Acts of Terrorism Transcending National Boundaries
➡ Charge: Soros’ actions—particularly funding and facilitating terror organizations—
directly contributed to acts of terrorism that transcend national boundaries, resulting in 
significant global instability.

 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
➡ Charge: Soros conspired to defraud the U.S. through a series of financial transactions 
and lobbying efforts designed to create a political environment where illegal 
immigration and terrorist financing could thrive without significant opposition.

 18 U.S.C. § 1594 – Benefiting from Human Trafficking
➡ Charge: Soros' network has benefited from illegal immigration and human 
trafficking operations, with funds being channeled through various proxies and partners 
to fund and perpetuate these activities.

 18 U.S.C. § 2101 – Riots
➡ Charge: Soros’ financial support of extremist groups has been linked to violent riots 
and political destabilization efforts across the U.S., contributing to domestic terrorism 
and chaos, further enabling criminal activities along U.S. borders.

 18 U.S.C. § 2339A/B – Material Support for Terrorism
➡ Charge: Soros helped facilitate Iran’s funding of Hamas, which directly contributed 
to terrorist violence. His network provided material support to organizations and 
individuals involved in financing or participating in terrorist acts, including Hamas, 
which received funds and resources from entities connected to Soros.

Sovereign Immunity Consideration

 Does Sovereign Immunity Apply to Soros?
No. George Soros and Alexander G. Soros are not shielded by sovereign immunity. 
Their actions, particularly in manipulating U.S. elections, financing terrorism, and 
facilitating illegal immigration, fall far outside the scope of any lawful duties they may 
have had. Sovereign immunity does not protect individuals engaged in criminal 
conspiracies, terrorism support, or financial manipulation.

Defendant Profile: Christopher Heinz

✔ Role: Former business partner in Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC); early investor 
and financial backer; stepson of former Secretary of State John F. Kerry; heir to the 
Pennsylvania-based Heinz family fortune. Though he later distanced himself from the enterprise, 
his early involvement provided financial legitimacy to a firm later entangled in money 
laundering, foreign bribery, and election interference.

📌 Alleged Offenses • Financial Crimes & Fraudulent Transfers
• Foreign Collusion & Illicit Investment Channels
• Criminal Conspiracy & Misprision of Felony
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📌 Violations Identified

🔹 Pennsylvania Statutes (Pa.C.S.)

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 3921 – Theft by Unlawful Taking
➡ Fraudulent transfers and use of Pennsylvania-based financial institutions to advance RSP 
operations.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 3922 – Theft by Deception
➡ Concealment of illicit investments under the guise of legitimate business formation.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 5111 – Dealing in Proceeds of Unlawful Activities
➡ Early Rosemont activity likely funneled through PA channels tied to Heinz’s financial 
networks.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
➡ Continued association and silence despite knowledge of misconduct.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 4902 – Perjury
➡ Failure to disclose allegiance to Skull and Bones under oath while serving in public office 
constitutes perjury under Pennsylvania law.

✔ 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO)
➡ If Skull and Bones is found to have exerted undue influence through Pennsylvania institutions 
(e.g., UPenn, Rosemont College), it may qualify as a corrupt organization operating through 
concealment and covert command structures.

🔹 Federal Statutes (U.S.C.)

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
➡ Alleged laundering of foreign funds tied to RSP operations.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
➡ Engaging in covert diplomacy with Iran and providing narrative cover for the $6B transfer 
while bound by a secret oath.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 4 – Misprision of Felony
➡ Knowing of ongoing Rosemont-linked crimes and failing to report or stop them while in 
office.
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✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1343 – Wire Fraud
➡ Electronic transmission of deceptive financial information across federal channels.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1621 – Perjury under Oath
➡ Oath of loyalty to Skull and Bones not renounced during Senate confirmation hearings; 
incompatible with the required exclusive allegiance to the Constitution.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements
➡ Failure to disclose conflicting allegiances in federal background checks or national security 
disclosures.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2384 – Seditious Conspiracy
➡ Coordination with other S&B alumni while in office could be construed as undermining 
lawful government operations in favor of a secret society’s objectives.

✔ 18 U.S.C. § 2381 – Treason (Symbolic but relevant)
➡ Allegiance to any external secret authority while serving as America’s top diplomat may 
violate the constitutional oath and spirit of treason statutes.

Christopher Heinz and His Ties to the Rosemont Network

Christopher Heinz, as the stepson of Secretary of State John F. Kerry, played a key role in 
the formation and early financial backing of Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC). His 
involvement in the company was pivotal, providing not only financial backing but also access 
to political and financial networks due to his family's connections.

The “Rosemont” name itself has deep significance, originating from the Heinz family’s 
Rosemont Farms in Fox Chapel, PA. This connection to the Heinz family's real estate, which 
was inherited by Teresa Heinz-Kerry after the death of her husband, Senator John Heinz III, 
added early-stage credibility to the firm, helping RSP-LLC establish itself in the political and 
financial sectors. Christopher Heinz’s family legacy through Rosemont Farms was 
instrumental in giving Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC) its initial foothold.

Although Christopher Heinz later distanced himself from RSP-LLC in 2014, particularly after 
Hunter Biden and Devon Archer joined the board of Burisma, he never fully severed ties with 
the Rosemont network. His other business ventures, including Rosemont Capital and 
Rosemont Realty, continue to carry the Rosemont name. Heinz did not demand that RSP-LLC 
change its name, maintaining a connection to the network he helped establish.

Heinz’s relationship with Hunter Biden evolved from a direct business relationship to a more 
indirect one, though both continued to share associations with the Rosemont brand. The 
Rosemont Seneca Partners name continued to link them professionally, even as Heinz 
distanced himself from direct involvement in the firm.
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Christopher Heinz's stepfather, John Kerry, was also intricately involved in the political and 
financial dynamics that tied RSP-LLC to international events, particularly in Ukraine. One key 
example is the controversial Shokin firing incident, in which Joe Biden, acting as Vice 
President, pressured Ukraine to remove Prosecutor Viktor Shokin, who was investigating 
Burisma. Kerry’s role in this political maneuver raises questions about how RSP-LLC and its 
associates, including Heinz, were potentially shielded from scrutiny due to the political influence 
wielded by Kerry and his step-son Heinz.

Despite Heinz’s alleged attempt to distance himself from Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC 
(RSP-LLC), the continued use of the “Rosemont” name across various entities ties him to the 
broader network, which remains under investigation for potential legal and ethical violations, 
including lobbying, influence peddling, and fraud.

Defendant Profile: Eric Schwerin

✔ Role: President of Rosemont Seneca Partners, LLC (RSP-LLC); Chief Financial Officer for 
Biden-linked financial operations; direct handler of Joseph R. Biden’s personal finances. 
Schwerin served as the financial gatekeeper for the Rosemont Network, overseeing illicit 
transactions, coordinating international wire transfers, and managing accounts that funneled 
money to Hunter Biden and other operatives.
✔ Alleged Offenses: Money laundering, financial fraud, obstruction of justice, criminal 
conspiracy, and possible election finance violations under RICO.

✔ Key Evidence:

 Architect of RSP’s Financial Crimes: As President of RSP-LLC, Schwerin structured 
the firm’s accounts and financial pipelines. He had direct knowledge and authority over 
foreign and domestic banking transactions from 2009 to 2014, including deals that likely 
violated U.S. election law, tax law, and FARA regulations.

 RSP’s PA-Based Conduits: Schwerin managed and approved financial activities linked 
to Pennsylvania-based nodes in the Rosemont Network. His knowledge of RSP’s 
operational reach and financial architecture directly implicates him in crimes committed 
in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

 Handled Joe Biden’s Personal Finances: Emails confirm Schwerin handled Joseph R. 
Biden’s tax filings, income flows, and household accounting during Biden’s Vice 
Presidency—while also structuring RSP’s global financial deals.

 Foundation of the Rosemont Pincer: Schwerin was instrumental in naming the firm and 
anchoring it to geographic locations in the Rosemont Pincer. He appears to have been 
aware of the symbolic, political, and operational value of those placements—including 
Butler, PA.

 Obstruction & Cover-Up: Schwerin’s testimony before Congress and omission of key 
financial data strongly suggest he withheld information about illegal foreign payments 
and election finance violations.

 The 9/11 Connection: Schwerin’s financial groundwork laid the infrastructure that 
allowed RSP’s hidden money channels to operate into 2023. This includes financial cover 
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for foreign adversaries like Iran, ultimately enabling the 9/11/2023 transfer of $6B used 
in the Hamas attack.

📜 Statutory Violations – PA & Federal
✅ Pennsylvania Statutes:

 18 Pa.C.S. § 903 – Criminal Conspiracy
 18 Pa.C.S. § 902 – Criminal Solicitation
 18 Pa.C.S. § 4101 – Forgery and Fraudulent Practices
 18 Pa.C.S. § 5301 – Official Oppression
 18 Pa.C.S. § 911 – Corrupt Organizations (PA RICO)

✅ Federal Statutes:

 18 U.S.C. § 1956 – Money Laundering
 18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy to Defraud the United States
 18 U.S.C. § 1519 – Destruction, Alteration, or Falsification of Records
 18 U.S.C. § 1001 – False Statements
 18 U.S.C. § 1962 – Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO)

🛡️ Sovereign Immunity Disclaimer (Not Applicable):
Eric Schwerin was not a government official during the acts described and does not qualify for 
sovereign immunity.

Potential Co-Conspirator Profile: Huma Mahmood 
Abedin
Role:

 Huma M. Abedin served as Hillary Clinton's senior aide during Clinton’s tenure as 
Secretary of State from 2009 to 2013, with a particular focus on U.S. foreign policy and 
national security operations.

 Abedin was closely involved in the Benghazi attack on September 11, 2012, the 11th 
anniversary of the 9/11 attacks. Her position provided her with direct access to 
sensitive intelligence and decision-making processes during critical events, including the 
lack of response to the Benghazi attack and the subsequent cover-up.

 Abedin’s ties to George Soros and Alexander G.Alex Soros through the Open Society 
Foundations (OSF), and her relationship to Alexander G. Soros,) link her to a broader 
network of global financial influence that played a key role in border destabilization, 
immigration policy, and the suppression of critical political and financial information.

Potential Violations:

 Obstruction of Justice
 Failure to Report Criminal Acts
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 Aiding & Abetting in Criminal Activity
 Complicity in Suppressing Evidence
 Conspiracy to Facilitate Border Invasions
 Financial Crimes
 Human Trafficking & Social Security Fraud
 Cover-Up of Rosemont Network Activities
 Failure to Act on Intelligence and National Security Threats

Key Evidence:

 Benghazi Attack – 9/11/2012:
o On September 11, 2012, the Benghazi attack took place, exactly 11 years after 

the 9/11 terrorist attacks, leaving four Americans dead. Given Abedin's 
prominent position, it is likely she had access to information surrounding the 
attack's prevention and the failure to protect U.S. personnel. Questions about 
prior knowledge and government inaction remain unresolved.

o While the attack remains shrouded in suspicion, particularly as a planned 
operation that may have been designed to influence political outcomes, Huma 
M. Abedin may have had direct knowledge of decisions that failed to prevent the 
attack and subsequent cover-up. Her proximity to Clinton and key decision-
makers makes her a central figure in understanding the full scope of this event.

 The 9/11/2023 Iran Funding & Hamas Attack:
o On September 11, 2023, exactly 11 years after the Benghazi attack, the Biden 

administration unfroze $6 billion to Iran, which Iran then used to fund Hamas 
and facilitate the October 7, 2023 massacre. This significant financial transaction 
links the events of 9/11 and the political violence that ensued.

o Huma M. Abedin, connected to the Soros network and closely involved in 
Clinton’s dealings, may have known about or been a part of the broader political 
machinery facilitating such a decision. The $6 billion transaction could have been 
a strategically timed move that had global ramifications, much like the Benghazi 
attack, raising questions about the role of key figures in both events.

 Connection to 9/11/2023 Funding and Hamas Attack:
On the 11th anniversary of the Benghazi attack, the Biden administration's decision to 
unfreeze $6 billion in Iranian assets directly enabled the funding of Hamas and 
contributed to the October 7, 2023 massacre. Huma M. Abedin, closely tied to Soros' 
network, may have had insight into these strategic moves. The timing and global 
repercussions of these events suggest that key figures, including Abedin, played a part in 
facilitating decisions with far-reaching consequences.

The Planned Operations: Connecting Benghazi, the $6B Iran Funding, and the 9/11/2023 
Attack:

 The 9/11/2012 Benghazi attack, the 9/11/2023 Iran funding decision, and the Hamas 
attack on Israel on October 7, 2023, are strikingly connected, not just by the shared date 
of September 11th, but also by the broader geopolitical manipulations orchestrated by 
key figures in U.S. and foreign policy.
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 These events, occurring 11 years apart, point to a deliberate manipulation of global and 
national crises. The Grok-3 report indicates that the probability of such a coordinated 
sequence of events happening exactly 11 years apart is 1 in 19.94 billion, essentially 
equating to a 1 in 34 flips of a coin for heads.

 This remarkable statistical improbability suggests that these events were planned, with 
coordinated moves that tie into the globalist agenda and the financial and political 
support of terrorism.

 Huma M. Abedin, with her proximity to high-level decision-makers and financial 
networks, especially through her connection to George Soros and Alexander G.Alex 
Soros, may have direct knowledge or insight into the planning behind these operations.

References:

 See Joseph R. Biden, Jr.'s PA2 and USC2 for detailed information on Huma M. 
Abedin's role in facilitating the collapse of U.S. borders, human trafficking, and the 
suppression of evidence tied to the Rosemont Network. Her connections to George 
Soros and Alexander G.Alex Soros via OSF have given her unique influence within 
both U.S. political circles and globalist networks.

Sovereign Immunity Considerations:

 Does Sovereign Immunity Apply to Huma M. Abedin?
o No. As a senior aide deeply involved in actions related to obstruction of justice 

and the cover-up of Benghazi and other critical political decisions, Huma M. 
Abedin is not shielded by sovereign immunity.

o Abedin's involvement in criminal conspiracies to suppress intelligence and 
cover up U.S. foreign policy failures directly conflicts with her official duties. 
Sovereign immunity does not protect individuals who partake in suppressing 
critical evidence, especially when such actions contribute to political violence 
and national security risks.

Rationale for Huma’s PCC Status:

 Huma M. Abedin was in a position to be fully aware of the suppressions of intelligence 
and the political manipulations surrounding the Benghazi attack and the subsequent 
cover-up. Her ties to the Soros network and her access to high-level political decision-
making processes make her a critical figure in understanding the coordinated nature of 
these operations.

 She may have knowledge that could connect the dots between Benghazi, the $6 billion 
to Iran, and the broader globalist agenda aimed at destabilizing U.S. sovereignty, 
including the planned border invasion and financial support for terrorism. As a PCC, 
she holds key information and insight into these coordinated efforts, potentially providing 
a window into the operations of the Rosemont Network and the political decisions that 
led to global unrest.
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Potential Co-Conspirator Profile: Teresa Heinz-Kerry

Role:

 Teresa Heinz-Kerry, the mother of Christopher Heinz, who is a co-founder of 
Rosemont Seneca Partners (RSP-LLC), is a key figure in the network connected to 
RSP-LLC.

 As the widow of Senator John Heinz and the current wife of former U.S. Secretary of 
State John Kerry, she is connected to significant political and financial influence.

 Teresa Heinz-Kerry is the owner of Rosemont Farms in Fox Chapel, PA, a property at 
the heart of the Rosemont Seneca Corridor, further strengthening her ties to the 
network.

 While there is no direct evidence of her active involvement in the criminal activities of 
RSP-LLC, her familial and financial ties to the network place her at the core of this 
powerful web of influence.

Potential Violations:

 Failure to Report Criminal Acts
 Complicity in Financial Crimes
 Conspiracy to Facilitate Border Invasions
 Suppression of Evidence
 Cover-Up of Rosemont Network Activities

Key Evidence:

 Ownership of Rosemont Farms: Her property is strategically located within the 
Rosemont Seneca Corridor and could be instrumental in understanding the geographic 
and symbolic importance of the network's operations.

 Connection to Key Political Figures: Her marriage to John Kerry, a key player in 
RSP-LLC, and her late husband's ties to the financial sector, give her substantial access 
to powerful political and financial circles.

 Financial Ties: As the mother of Christopher Heinz, a founding member of RSP-LLC, 
Teresa Heinz-Kerry may possess knowledge about the financial and political 
machinations of the Rosemont Seneca Network.

Rationale for PCC Status:

• Teresa Heinz-Kerry may possess critical information regarding illegal financial 
transactions, political influence, and cover-ups tied to RSP-LLC, including potential links 
to the events leading to the Butler, PA shooting. 
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• Given her deep familial and financial involvement with the Rosemont Network, she 
may have insights into the operations of this network and its connections to broader 
political and criminal activities within the U.S. government.

Roster Integration & Cross-Reference Summary

This roster of named individuals—including Defendants, Potential Co-Conspirators (PCCs), 
and Witnesses—is now fully integrated with:

• The Core Complaint (BB3)
• The Prosecution Memorandum (BB2)
• All active Thematic Reports of Investigation (TRI01–TRI07)
• The Jurisdictional Review Request (BB0A)
• And the Master Index Spreadsheet: BB99_MiscDefendantList.xlsx

This list represents the most complete public-facing record of those individuals whose actions, 
associations, or proximity to criminal activity have warranted inclusion in The Butler Brief. All 
names are subject to continued investigative triage and prioritization. Future updates to this 
document may increase the roster as new evidence is uncovered.

📌 LEGAL DISCLAIMER

This document is submitted as part of a formal criminal complaint for review by law 
enforcement and prosecutorial authorities. All statements and allegations contained herein are 
based on publicly available records, investigative findings, sworn testimonies, and legal 
precedents. This complaint does not constitute a final determination of guilt, nor does it assert 
with absolute certainty any individual's or entity's legal liability. Rather, it presents compelling 
evidence and reasonable cause for further investigation by competent authorities.

Any references to individuals, corporations, or governmental agencies are made within the 
context of factual reporting, legal precedent, and investigative inquiry. If any party named in 
this document disputes the assertions contained herein, they are encouraged to provide official, 
verifiable rebuttal through proper legal channels.

This submission is protected under First Amendment rights, anti-SLAPP protections, and 
whistleblower statutes where applicable. Any attempts to suppress, intimidate, or retaliate 
against the author in response to this complaint will be documented and disclosed accordingly.
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